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amount only, all directors and executive officers are treated as affiliates. This determination of affiliate status is not
necessarily a conclusive determination for other purposes.) As of June 12, 2013, 11,775,577 shares of the registrant’s
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DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE
Portions of the Registrant's definitive Proxy Statement pertaining to the 2013 Annual Meeting of Shareholders ("the
Proxy Statement") and filed pursuant to Regulation 14A are incorporated herein by reference into Part III hereof.

EXPLANATORY NOTE

This Amendment No. 1 on Form 10-K/A (this “Form 10-K/A”) to the registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended March 31, 2013, initially filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 14, 2013 (the
“Original Filing”), is being filed to provide certain information that was omitted from the Original Filing, including (i)

Part I1, Items 6, 7, 7A, 8, 9, 9A and 9B, (ii) Exhibit 23.0, Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm,
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(iii) complete versions of Exhibits 31.1 and 31.2, Certifications of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer under Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a), (iv) Exhibits 32.1 and 32.2, Certifications of the Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer under Section 1350, and (v) Exhibit 101, financial statement information in XBRL format. In
addition, for convenience, this Form 10-K/A also includes and restates the items included in the Original Filing.
Except as otherwise set forth in this Form 10-K/A, no changes or updates to the items included in the Original Filing
have been made to reflect subsequent events that may have occurred with respect to such items subsequent to the
filing date of the Original Filing.
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Introduction

World Acceptance Corporation, a South Carolina corporation, operates a small-loan consumer finance business in
thirteen states and Mexico. As used herein, the "Company,” “we,” “our,” “us,” or similar formulations include World
Acceptance Corporation and each of its subsidiaries, except that when used with reference to the Common Stock or
other securities described herein and in describing the positions held by management or agreements of the Company,

it includes only World Acceptance Corporation. All references in this report to “fiscal 2014” are to the Company’s fiscal
year that will end on March 31, 2014; all references in this report to "fiscal 2013" are to the Company's fiscal year

ended March 31, 2013; all references to “fiscal 2012” are to the Company’s fiscal year ending March 31, 2012; and all

references to “fiscal 2011 are to the Company’s fiscal year ending March 31, 2011.

The Company maintains an Internet website, “www.worldacceptance.com,” where interested persons will be able to
access free of charge, among other information, the Company’s annual reports on Form 10-K, its quarterly reports on
Form 10-Q, and its current reports on Form 8-K, as well as amendments to these filings, via a link to a third party
website. These documents are available for access as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file these
documents with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). The Company files these reports with the SEC via
the SEC’s EDGAR filing system, and such reports also may be accessed via the SEC’s EDGAR database at
www.sec.gov. The Company will also provide either electronic or paper copies free of charge upon written request to
P.O. Box 6429, Greenville, SC 29606-6429. Information included on or linked to our website is not incorporated by
reference into this annual report.

PART L.
Item 1. Description of Business

General. The Company is engaged in the small-loan consumer finance business, offering short-term small loans,
medium-term larger loans, related credit insurance and ancillary products and services to individuals. The Company
generally offers standardized installment loans of between $300 and $4,000 through 1,203 offices in South Carolina,
Georgia, Texas, Oklahoma, Louisiana, Tennessee, Illinois, Missouri, New Mexico, Kentucky, Alabama, Wisconsin,
Indiana, and Mexico as of March 31, 2013. The Company generally serves individuals with limited access to
consumer credit from banks, credit unions, other consumer finance businesses and credit card lenders. In the U.S.
offices, the Company also offers income tax return preparation services to its customers and others.

Small-loan consumer finance companies operate in a highly structured regulatory environment. Consumer loan
offices are licensed under state laws, which, in many states, establish allowable interest rates, fees and other charges
on small loans made to consumers and maximum principal amounts and maturities of these loans. The Company
believes that virtually all participants in the small-loan consumer finance industry charge at or close to the maximum
rates permitted under applicable state laws in those states with interest rate limitations.

The small-loan consumer finance industry is a highly fragmented segment of the consumer lending

industry. Small-loan consumer finance companies generally make loans to individuals of up to $1,500 with maturities
of one year or less. These companies approve loans on the basis of the personal creditworthiness of their customers
and maintain close contact with borrowers to encourage the repayment or when appropriate to meet the borrower’s
needs, the refinancing of loans. By contrast, commercial banks, credit unions and other consumer finance businesses
typically make loans of more than $5,000 with maturities of more than one year. Those financial institutions
generally approve consumer loans on the security of qualifying personal property pledged as collateral or impose
more stringent credit requirements than those of small-loan consumer finance companies. As a result of their higher
credit standards and specific collateral requirements, commercial banks, savings and loans and other consumer finance
businesses typically charge lower interest rates and fees and experience lower delinquency and charge-off rates than
do small-loan consumer finance companies. Small-loan consumer finance companies generally charge higher interest
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rates and fees to compensate for the greater credit risk of delinquencies and charge-offs and increased loan
administration and collection costs.
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Expansion. During fiscal 2013, the Company opened 67 new offices. Three offices were purchased and four offices
were merged into existing offices due to its inability to grow to profitable levels. In fiscal 2014, the Company plans to
open or acquire at least 50 new offices in the United States by increasing the number of offices in its existing market
areas or commencing operations in new states where it believes demographic profiles and state regulations are
attractive. In addition, the Company plans to open approximately 15 new offices in Mexico in fiscal 2014. The
Company's ability to continue existing operations and expand its operations in existing or new states is dependent
upon, among other things, laws and regulations that permit the Company to operate its business profitably and its
ability to obtain necessary regulatory approvals and licenses; however, there can be no assurance that such laws and
regulations will not change in ways that adversely affect the Company or that the Company will be able to obtain any
such approvals or consents. See Part 1, Item 1A, “Risk Factors” for a further discussion of risks to our business and
plans for expansion.

The Company's expansion is also dependent upon its ability to identify attractive locations for new offices and to hire
suitable personnel to staff, manage and supervise new offices. In evaluating a particular community, the Company
examines several factors, including the demographic profile of the community, the existence of an established
small-loan consumer finance market and the availability of suitable personnel to staff, manage and supervise the new
offices. The Company generally locates new offices in communities already served by at least one other small-loan
consumer finance company.

As already noted, the small-loan consumer finance industry is highly fragmented in the thirteen states in which the
Company currently operates. The Company believes that its competitors in these markets are principally independent
operators with generally less than 100 offices. The Company also believes that attractive opportunities to acquire
offices from competitors in its existing markets and to acquire offices in communities not currently served by the
Company will become available as conditions in the local economies and the financial circumstances of the owners
change.

The following table sets forth the number of offices of the Company at the dates indicated:

At March 31,
State 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
South Carolina 65 65 68 89 92 93 95 97 97 98
Georgia 74 76 74 96 97 100 101 103 105 108
Texas 150 164 168 183 204 223 229 247 262 279
Oklahoma 47 51 58 62 70 80 82 82 82 82
Louisiana 20 20 24 28 34 38 38 40 44 47
Tennessee 51 55 61 72 80 92 95 103 105 105
Illinois 30 33 37 40 58 61 64 68 75 81
Missouri 26 36 38 44 49 57 62 66 72 76
New Mexico 19 20 22 27 32 37 39 44 44 44
Kentucky 30 36 41 45 52 58 61 66 70 71
Alabama 14 21 26 31 35 42 44 51 62 64
Colorado (1) — 2 — — — — — — — —
Wisconsin (3) — — — — — — — 5 14 21
Indiana (4) — — — — — — — — — 8
Mexico (2) — — 3 15 35 63 80 95 105 119
Total 526 579 620 732 838 944 990 1,067 1,137 1,203

(1) The Company commenced operations in Colorado in August 2004 and ceased operations in April 2005.
(2) The Company commenced operations in Mexico in September 2005.
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(3) The Company commenced operations in Wisconsin in December 2010.
(4) The Company commenced operations in Indiana in September 2012.




Edgar Filing: WORLD ACCEPTANCE CORP - Form 10-K/A

Table of Contents

Loan and Other Products. In each state in which it operates and in Mexico, the Company offers consumer installment
loans that are standardized by amount and maturity in an effort to reduce documentation and related processing

costs. The Company's loans are consumer installment loans that are payable in fully amortizing monthly installments
with terms generally of 4 to 44 months, and all loans are prepayable at any time without penalty. In fiscal 2013, the
Company's average originated gross loan size and term were approximately $1,246 and 12 months,

respectively. Several state laws regulate lending terms, including the maximum loan amounts and interest rates and
the types and maximum amounts of fees and other costs that may be charged. As of March 31, 2013, the annual
percentage rates on loans offered by the Company, which include interest, fees and other charges as calculated for the
purposes of the requirements of the federal Truth in Lending Act, ranged from 21% to 199% depending on the loan
size, maturity and the state in which the loan is made. In addition, in certain states, the Company, as agent for an
unaffiliated insurance company, sells credit insurance in connection with its loan transactions. The commissions from
the premiums for those insurance products may increase the Company’s overall returns on loan transactions originated
in those states.

Specific allowable charges vary by state and, consistent with industry practice, the Company generally charges at or
close to the maximum rates allowable under applicable state law in those states that limit loan rates. Statutes in Texas
and Oklahoma allow for indexing the maximum loan amounts to the Consumer Price Index. The Company’s loan
products are pre-computed loans in which the finance charge is a combination of origination or acquisition fees,
account maintenance fees, monthly account handling fee and other charges permitted by the relevant state laws.

As of March 31, 2013, annual percentage rates applicable to our gross loans receivable, as defined by the Truth in
Lending Act were as follows:

Percentage of total

Low High US Mexico Total gross loans

receivable
21 % 36 % $259,401,697 $— $259,401,697 24.31 %
37 % 50 % 220,261,660 4,127 220,265,787 20.64 %
51 % 60 % 139,553,431 130,600 139,684,031 13.09 %
61 % 70 % 54,303,748 3,312,904 57,616,652 5.40 %
71 % 80 % 33,513,034 12,804,266 46,317,300 4.34 %
81 % 90 % 203,928,045 5,374,819 209,302,864 19.62 %
91 % 100 % 32,101,282 2,651,548 34,752,830 3.26 %
101 % 150 % 29,564,466 61,125,256 90,689,722 8.50 %
151 % 199 % 9,020,880 — 9,020,880 0.85 %
$981,648,243 $85,403,520 $1,067,051,763 100 %

The Company, as an agent for an unaffiliated insurance company, markets and sells credit life, credit accident and
health, credit property, and unemployment insurance in connection with its loans in selected states where the sale of
such insurance is permitted by law. Credit life insurance provides for the payment in full of the borrower's credit
obligation to the lender in the event of death. Credit accident and health insurance provides for repayment of loan
installments to the lender that come due during the insured's period of income interruption resulting from disability
from illness or injury. Credit property insurance insures payment of the borrower's credit obligation to the lender in
the event that the personal property pledged as security by the borrower is damaged or destroyed by a covered
event. Unemployment insurance provides for repayment of loan installments to the lender that come due during the
insured’s period of involuntary unemployment. The Company encourages customers to obtain credit insurance for all
loans originated in Georgia, South Carolina, Louisiana, Indiana and Kentucky and on a limited basis in Alabama,
Tennessee, Oklahoma, and Texas. Customers in those states typically obtain such credit insurance through the
Company. Charges for such credit insurance are made at filed authorized rates and are stated separately in the
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Company's disclosure to customers, as required by the Truth in Lending Act and by various applicable state laws. In
the sale of insurance policies, the Company, as an agent, writes policies only within limitations established by its
agency contracts with the insurer. The Company does not sell credit insurance to non-borrowers.

In South Carolina, Georgia, Louisiana, Kentucky and Alabama, the Company also charges its borrowers for its
non-filing insurance premiums in connection with certain loans in lieu of recording and perfecting the Company’s
security interest in the loan collateral. The premiums are remitted to a third party insurance company for non-filing
insurance coverage.
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The Company also markets automobile club memberships to its borrowers in Georgia, Tennessee, New Mexico,
Louisiana, Alabama, Texas, Kentucky, and Indiana as an agent for an unaffiliated automobile club. Club
memberships entitle members to automobile breakdown and towing reimbursement and related services. The
Company is paid a commission on each membership sold, but has no responsibility for administering the club, paying
benefits or providing services to club members. The Company does not market automobile club memberships to
non-borrowers.

The table below shows the insurance types available in each state the Company operates:

Credit Credit Non-filing Automobile
Credit Life =~ Accident Property Unemployment Premiums Club

and Health Membership
Georgia X X X X X
South Carolina X X X X X
Texas (1) X X X X X
Oklahoma (1) X X X X
Louisiana X X X X X
Tennessee (1) X X X X X
Illinois
Missouri
New Mexico (1) X X X
Kentucky X X X X X X
Alabama X X X X X
Wisconsin
Indiana X X X X X

(1) Credit insurance is offered for certain loans.

In fiscal 1995, the Company implemented its World Class Buying Club and began marketing certain electronic
products and appliances to its Texas borrowers. Since implementation, the Company has expanded this program to
Georgia, Tennessee, New Mexico and Missouri. The program is not offered in the other states where the Company
operates, as it is not permitted by the state regulations in those states. Borrowers participating in this program can
purchase a product from a limited selection of items maintained in the branch offices or offered through a catalog
available at a branch office and can finance the purchase with a retail installment sales contract provided by the
Company. Other than the limited product samples maintained in the branch offices, products sold through this
program are shipped directly by the suppliers to the Company's customers and, accordingly, the Company is not
required to maintain a large inventory to support the program. The Company believes that maintaining a limited
number of items on hand in each of its participating offices has enhanced sales under this program and plans to
continue this practice in the future.

Another service offered by the Company is income tax return preparation and electronic filing. This program is
provided in all but a few of the Company’s U.S offices. The Company prepared, approximately, 50,000, 44,000 and
48,000 returns in each of the fiscal years 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Net revenue generated by the Company
from this program during fiscal 2013, 2012 and 2011 amounted to approximately $8.7 million, $7.9 million and $7.8
million, respectively. The Company believes that this is a beneficial service for its existing customer base, as well as
non-loan customers, and it plans to continue to promote this program.

12
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Loan Receivables. The following table sets forth the composition of the Company's gross loan receivables by state at
March 31 of each year from 2004 through 2013:

At March 31,
State 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
South‘ 14 % 12 % 11 % 13 % 12 % 11 % 12 % 12 % 11 % 11 %
Carolina
Georgia 13 13 13 14 15 14 14 13 13 13
Texas 21 20 24 23 22 21 20 19 19 19
Oklahoma 5 5 6 5 5 6 6 7 6 6
Louisiana 3 3 3 3 3 3 2 2 2 2
Tennessee 15 18 15 15 14 14 14 14 14 13
Illinois 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 7 6
Missouri 6 6 6 5 6 6 6 6 6 6
New 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 2 2 2
Mexico
Kentucky 12 12 11 9 9 9 9 9 9 9
Alabama 3 3 3 3 3 4 4 4 4 4
Wisconsin . . . . o . o o | 1
2
Indiana (3) — — — — — — — — — —
Mexico (1) — — — 1 2 3 4 6 6 8
Total 100 % 100 % 100 % 100 % 100 % 100 % 100 % 100 % 100 % 100 %

(1) The Company commenced operations in Mexico in September 2005.
(2) The Company commenced operations in Wisconsin in December 2010.
(3) The Company commenced operations in Indiana in September 2012.

The following table sets forth the total number of loans, the average loan balance and the gross loan balance by state
at March 31, 2013:

Total Average Gross Loan

Number Gross Loan  Balance

of Loans Balance (thousands)
South Carolina 83,517 $1,389 $116,029
Georgia 97,224 1,378 133,989
Texas 227,303 896 203,564
Oklahoma 56,172 1,194 67,048
Louisiana 31,857 800 25,493
Tennessee 100,968 1,385 139,828
Illinois 48,830 1,403 68,500
Missouri 44,267 1,399 61,936
New Mexico 27,030 747 20,194
Kentucky 57,436 1,586 91,075
Alabama 48,194 897 43,238
Wisconsin 7,000 1,308 9,155
Indiana 1,308 1,223 1,600
Mexico 126,008 678 85,403
Total 957,114 $1,115 $1,067,052
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For fiscal 2013, 2012 and 2011, 93.0%, 93.4% and 94.5%, respectively, of the Company’s revenues were attributable

to U.S. customers and 7.0%, 6.6% and 5.5%, respectively, were attributable to customers in Mexico. For further
information regarding potential risks associated with the Company’s operations in Mexico, see Part I, Item 1A, “Risk
Factors—Our continued expansion into Mexico may increase the risks inherent in conducting international operations,
contribute materially to increased costs and negatively affect our business, prospects, results of operations and

financial condition,” and “~Our use of derivatives exposes us to credit and market risk,” as well as Part II, Item 7,
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Quantitative and Qualitative
Disclosures about Market Risk—Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk.”

Seasonality. The Company's highest loan demand occurs generally from October through December, its third fiscal
quarter. Loan demand is generally lowest and loan repayment highest from January to March, its fourth fiscal
quarter. Consequently, the Company experiences significant seasonal fluctuations in its operating results and cash
needs. Operating results from the Company's third fiscal quarter are generally lower than in other quarters and
operating results for its fourth fiscal quarter are generally higher than in other quarters.

Lending and Collection Operations. The Company seeks to provide short-term consumer installment loans to the
segment of the population that has limited access to other sources of credit. In evaluating the creditworthiness of
potential customers, the Company primarily examines the individual's discretionary income, length of current
employment and/or sources of income, duration of residence and prior credit experience. Loans are made to
individuals on the basis of the customer's discretionary income and other factors and are limited to amounts that the
customer can reasonably be expected to repay from that income. All of the Company's new customers are required to
complete standardized credit applications in person or by telephone at local Company offices. Each of the Company's
local offices is equipped to perform immediate background, employment and credit checks and approve loan
applications promptly, often while the customer waits. The Company's employees verify the applicant's sources of
income and credit histories through telephone checks with employers, other employment references and a variety of
credit services. Substantially all new customers are required to submit a listing of personal property that will serve as
collateral to secure the loan, but the Company does not rely on the value of such collateral in the loan approval
process and generally does not perfect its security interest in that collateral. Accordingly, if the customer were to
default in the repayment of the loan, the Company may not be able to recover the outstanding loan balance by
resorting to the sale of collateral. The Company generally approves less than 50% of applications for loans to new
customers.

The Company believes that development and continual reinforcement of personal relationships with customers
improves the Company's ability to monitor their creditworthiness, reduces credit risk and generates customer

loyalty. It is not unusual for the Company to have made a number of loans to the same customer over the course of
several years, many of which were refinanced with a new loan after the borrower had reduced the existing loan's
outstanding balance by making multiple payments. In determining whether to refinance existing loans, the Company
typically requires loans to be current on a recency basis, and repeat customers are generally required to complete a
new credit application if they have not completed one within the prior two years.

In fiscal 2013, approximately 84.6% of the Company's loans were generated through refinancings of outstanding loans
and the origination of new loans to previous customers. A refinancing represents a new loan transaction with a
present customer in which a portion of the new loan proceeds is used to repay the balance of an existing loan and the
remaining portion is advanced to the customer. The Company actively markets the opportunity for qualifying
customers to refinance existing loans prior to maturity. In many cases the existing customer’s past performance and
established creditworthiness with the Company qualifies that customer for a larger loan. This, in turn, may increase
the fees and other income realized for a particular customer. For fiscal 2013, 2012 and 2011, the percentages of the
Company's loan originations that were refinancings of existing loans were 75.3%, 75.9% and 75.9%, respectively.
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The Company allows refinancing of delinquent loans on a case-by-case basis for those customers who otherwise
satisfy the Company's credit standards. Each such refinancing is carefully examined before approval in an effort to
avoid increasing credit risk. A delinquent loan may generally be refinanced only if the customer has made payments
which, together with any credits of insurance premiums or other charges to which the customer is entitled in
connection with the refinancing, reduce the balance due on the loan to an amount equal to or less than the original
cash advance made in connection with the loan. The Company does not allow the amount of the new loan to exceed
the original amount of the existing loan. The Company believes that refinancing delinquent loans for certain
customers who have made periodic payments allows the Company to increase its average loans outstanding and its
interest, fee and other income without experiencing a significant increase in loan losses. These refinancings also
provide a resolution to temporary financial setbacks for these borrowers and sustain their credit rating. Because they
are allowed on a selective basis only, refinancings of delinquent loans represented 1.4% of the Company’s loan volume
in fiscal 2013.
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To reduce late payment risk, local office staffs encourage customers to inform the Company in advance of expected
payment problems. Local office staff also promptly contact delinquent customers following any payment due date
and thereafter remain in close contact with such customers through phone calls, letters or personal visits to the
customer until payment is received or some other resolution is reached. When representatives of the Company make
personal visits to delinquent customers, the Company's policy is to encourage the customers to return to the
Company's office to make payment. Company employees are instructed not to accept payment outside of the
Company's offices except in unusual circumstances. In Georgia, Oklahoma, Illinois, Missouri, Tennessee, Alabama,
Louisiana, New Mexico, Wisconsin, Kentucky, and Indiana the Company is permitted under state laws to garnish
customers' wages for repayment of loans, but the Company does not otherwise generally resort to litigation for
collection purposes, and rarely attempts to foreclose on collateral.

Insurance-related Operations. In certain states, the Company sells credit insurance to customers in connection with
its loans as an agent for an unaffiliated insurance company. These insurance policies provide for the payment of the
outstanding balance of the Company's loan upon the occurrence of an insured event. The Company earns a
commission on the sale of such credit insurance, which is based in part on the claims experience of the insurance
company on policies sold on its behalf by the Company.

The Company has a wholly-owned, captive insurance subsidiary that reinsures a portion of the credit insurance sold in
connection with loans made by the Company. Certain coverages currently sold by the Company on behalf of the
unaffiliated insurance carrier are ceded by the carrier to the captive insurance subsidiary, providing the Company with
an additional source of income derived from the earned reinsurance premiums. In fiscal 2013, the captive insurance
subsidiary reinsured approximately 1.4% of the credit insurance sold by the Company and contributed approximately
$0.8 million to the Company's total revenues.

The Company typically does not perfect its security interest in collateral securing its smaller loans by filing Uniform
Commercial Code (“UCC”) financing statements. Statutes in Georgia, Louisiana, South Carolina, Kentucky and
Alabama permit the Company to charge a non-filing or non-recording insurance premium in connection with certain
loans originated in these states. These premiums are equal in aggregate amount to the premiums paid by the Company
to purchase non-filing insurance coverage from an unaffiliated insurance company. Under its non-filing insurance
coverage, the Company is reimbursed for losses on loans resulting from its policy not to perfect its security interest in
collateral securing the loans.

Information Technology. ParaData Financial Systems, a wholly owned subsidiary, is a financial services software
company headquartered near St. Louis, Missouri. Using the proprietary data processing software package developed
by ParaData, the Company is able to fully automate all of its loan account processing and collection reporting. The
system provides thorough management information and control capabilities. ParaData also markets its financial
services data processing system to other financial services companies, but experiences significant fluctuations from
year to year in the amount of revenues generated from sales of the system to third parties. Such revenues have
historically not been material to the Company.

Monitoring and Supervision. The Company's loan operations are organized into Southern, Central, and Western
Divisions, and Mexico. The Southern Division consists of South Carolina, Georgia, Louisiana and Alabama; the
Central Division consists of Tennessee, Illinois, Missouri, Wisconsin, Kentucky, and Indiana; and the Western
Division consists of Texas, Oklahoma, and New Mexico. Several levels of management monitor and supervise the
operations of each of the Company's offices. Branch managers are directly responsible for the performance of their
respective offices. District supervisors are responsible for the performance of 8 to 11 offices in their districts,
typically communicate with the branch managers of each of their offices at least weekly and visit the offices at least
monthly. The Vice Presidents of Operations monitor the performance of all offices within their states (or partial state
in the case of Texas), primarily through communication with district supervisors. These Vice Presidents of
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Operations typically communicate with the district supervisors of each of their districts weekly and visit each of their
offices quarterly.

Senior management receives daily delinquency, loan volume, charge-off, and other statistical reports consolidated by
state and has access to these daily reports for each branch office. At least six times per fiscal year, district supervisors
examine the operations of each office in their geographic area and submit standardized reports detailing their findings
to the Company's senior management. At least once per year, each office undergoes an audit by the Company's
internal auditors. These audits include an examination of cash balances and compliance with Company loan approval,
review and collection procedures and compliance with federal and state laws and regulations.

Staff and Training. Local offices are generally staffed with three to four employees. The branch manager supervises
operations of the office and is responsible for approving all new and former borrower loan applications and requests
for increases in the amount of credit extended. Each office generally has one or two assistant managers who contact
delinquent customers, review loan applications and prepare operational reports. Each office also generally has a
customer service representative who takes loan applications, processes loan applications, applies payments, and assists
in the preparation of operational reports, in collection efforts, and in marketing activities. Larger offices may employ
additional assistant managers and customer service representatives.
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New employees are required to review detailed training manuals that outline the Company's operating policies and
procedures. The Company tests each employee on the training manual during the first year of employment. In
addition, each branch provides in-office training sessions once every week and periodic training sessions outside the
office. The Company has also implemented an enhanced training tool known as World University,which provides
continuous, real-time, effective online training to all locations. This allows for more training opportunities to be
available to all employees throughout the course of their career with the Company.

Advertising. The Company actively advertises through direct mail, targeting both its present and former customers
and potential customers who have used other sources of consumer credit. The Company obtains or acquires mailing
lists from third party sources. In addition to the general promotion of its loans for vacations, back-to-school needs and
other uses, the Company advertises extensively during the October through December holiday season and in
connection with new office openings. The Company believes its advertising contributes significantly to its ability to
compete effectively with other providers of small-loan consumer credit. Advertising expenses were approximately
2.5% of total revenues in fiscal 2013, 2.6% in fiscal 2012 and 2.7% in fiscal 2011.

Competition. The small-loan consumer finance industry is highly fragmented, with numerous competitors. The
majority of the Company's competitors are independent operators with generally less than 100 offices. Competition
from community banks and credit unions is limited because banks typically do not make loans of less than $5,000.

The Company believes that competition between small-loan consumer finance companies occurs primarily on the
basis of the strength of customer relationships, customer service and reputation in the local community, rather than
pricing, as participants in this industry generally charge interest rates and fees at or close to the maximum permitted
by applicable laws. The Company believes that its relatively larger size affords it a competitive advantage over
smaller companies by increasing its access to, and reducing its cost of, capital. In addition the Company’s in-house
integrated computer system provides data processing and the Company’s in-house print shop provides direct mail and
other printed items at a substantially reduced cost to the Company.

Several of the states in which the Company currently operates limit the size of loans made by small-loan consumer
finance companies and prohibit the extension of more than one loan to a customer by any one company. As a result,
many customers borrow from more than one finance company, enabling the Company, subject to the limitations of
various consumer protection and privacy statutes including, but not limited to the federal Fair Credit Reporting Act
and the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act, to obtain information on the credit history of specific customers from other
consumer finance companies.

Employees. As of March 31, 2013, the Company had 3,549 U.S. employees, none of whom were represented by labor
unions and 934 employees in Mexico, all of whom were represented by a Mexico-based labor union. The Company
considers its relations with its personnel to be good. The Company seeks to hire people who will become long-term
employees. The Company experiences a high level of turnover among its entry-level personnel, which the Company
believes is typical of the small-loan consumer finance industry.

Executive Officers of the Company. The names and ages, positions, terms of office and periods of service of each of
the Company's executive officers (and other business experience for executive officers who have served as such for
less than five years) are set forth below. The term of office for each executive officer expires upon the earlier of the
appointment and qualification of a successor or such officers' death, resignation, retirement or removal.
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Period of Service as Executive Officer and
Name and Age Position Pre-executive Officer Experience (if an
Executive Officer for Less Than Five Years)

A. Alexander McLean, III (61) Chief Executive Officer; Chief Executive Officer since March 2006;
Chairman and Director =~ Executive Vice President from August 1996
until March 2006; Senior Vice President from
July 1992 until August 1996; CFO from June
1989 until March 2006; Director since June
1989; and Chairman since August 2007.

Kelly M. Malson (43) Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer since March 2006;
Chief Financial Officer ~ Senior Vice President since May 2009;
Vice President of Internal Audit from
September 2005 to March 2006.

Mark C. Roland (56) President and Chief President since March 2006; Chief Operating
Operating Officer Officer since April 2005; Executive Vice
and Director President from April 2002 to March 2006;

Senior Vice President from January 1996 to
April 2002; Director from August 2007

until August 2011.
Jeff L. Tinney (50) Senior Vice President, Senior Vice President, Western Division, since
Western Division June 2007; Vice President, Operations — Texas

and New Mexico from June 2001 to June
2007; Vice President, Operations — Texas and
Louisiana from April 1998 to June 2001.

D. Clinton Dyer (40) Senior Vice President, Senior Vice President, Central Division since
Central Division June 2005; Vice President, Operations —
Tennessee and Kentucky from April 2002 to
June 2005.
James D. Walters (45) Senior Vice President, Senior Vice President, Southern Division since
Southern Division April 2005; Vice President, Operations —
South Carolina and Alabama from August 1998
to March 2005.
Francisco Javier Sauza Del Pozo (58) Senior Vice President, Senior Vice President, Mexico since May
Mexico 2008; Vice President of Operations from April

2005 to May 2008; President of Border
Consulting Group from July 2004 to March 2005.

Government Regulation.
U. S. Operations. Small-loan consumer finance companies are subject to extensive regulation, supervision and
licensing under various federal and state statutes, ordinances and regulations. In general, these statutes establish

maximum loan amounts and interest rates and the types and maximum amounts of fees and other charges. In addition,
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state laws regulate collection procedures, the keeping of books and records and other aspects of the operation of
small-loan consumer finance companies. Generally, state regulations also establish minimum capital requirements for
each local office. State agency approval is required to open new branch offices. Accordingly, the ability of the
Company to expand by acquiring existing offices and opening new offices will depend in part on obtaining the
necessary regulatory approvals.

10
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A Texas regulation requires the approval of the Texas Consumer Credit Commissioner for the acquisition, directly or
indirectly, of more than 10% of the voting or common stock of a consumer finance company. A Louisiana statute
prohibits any person from acquiring control of 50% or more of the shares of stock of a licensed consumer lender, such
as the Company, without first obtaining a license as a consumer lender. The overall effect of these laws, and similar
laws in other states, is to make it more difficult to acquire a consumer finance company than it might be to acquire
control of a nonregulated corporation.

All of the Company's branch offices are licensed under the laws of the state in which the office is located. Licenses
granted by the regulatory agencies in these states are subject to renewal every year and may be revoked for failure to
comply with applicable state and federal laws and regulations. In the states in which the Company currently operates,
licenses may be revoked only after an administrative hearing.

The Company and its operations are regulated by several state agencies, including the Industrial Loan Division of the
Office of the Georgia Insurance Commissioner, the Consumer Finance Division of the South Carolina Board of
Financial Institutions, the South Carolina Department of Consumer Affairs, the Texas Office of the Consumer Credit
Commissioner, the Oklahoma Department of Consumer Credit, the Louisiana Office of Financial Institutions, the
Tennessee Department of Financial Institutions, the Missouri Division of Finance, the Consumer Credit Division of
the Illinois Department of Financial Institutions, the Consumer Credit Bureau of the New Mexico Financial
Institutions Division, the Kentucky Department of Financial Institutions, the Alabama State Banking Department,
the Wisconsin Department of Financial Institutions, and the Indiana Department of Financial Institutions. These state
regulatory agencies audit the Company's local offices from time to time, and each state agency performs an annual
compliance audit of the Company's operations in that state.

Insurance. The Company is also subject to state regulations governing insurance agents in the states in which it sells
credit insurance. State insurance regulations require that insurance agents be licensed, govern the commissions that
may be paid to agents in connection with the sale of credit insurance and limit the premium amount charged for such
insurance. The Company's captive insurance subsidiary is regulated by the insurance authorities of the Turks and
Caicos Islands of the British West Indies, where the subsidiary is organized and domiciled.

Consumer finance companies are affected by changes in state and federal statutes and regulations. The Company
actively participates in trade associations and in lobbying efforts in the states in which it operates and at the federal
level. There have been, and the Company expects that there will continue to be, media attention, initiatives,
discussions, proposals and legislation regarding the entire consumer credit industry, as well as our particular business,
and possible significant changes to the laws and regulations, or the authority exercised pursuant to those laws and
regulations that govern our business. In some cases, proposed or pending legislative or regulatory changes have been
introduced that would, if enacted, have a material adverse effect on, or possibly even eliminate, our ability to continue
our current business. We can give no assurance that the laws and regulations that govern our business, or the
interpretation or administration of those laws and regulations, will remain unchanged or that any such future changes
will not materially and adversely affect or in the worst case, eliminate, the Company’s lending practices, operations,
profitability or prospects. See "State legislation" and “Federal legislation” below and Part I, Item 1A, “Risk Factors,” for a
further discussion of the potential impact of regulatory changes on our business.

State legislation. We are subject to numerous state laws and regulations that affect our lending activities. Many of
these regulations impose detailed and complex constraints on the terms of our loans, lending forms and

operations. Failure to comply with applicable laws and regulations could subject us to regulatory enforcement action
that could result in the assessment against us of civil, monetary or other penalties.

In the past, several state legislative and regulatory proposals have been introduced which, had they become law,
would have had a material adverse impact on our operations and ability to continue to conduct business in the relevant
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state. Although to date none of these state initiatives have been successful, state legislatures continue to receive
pressure to adopt similar legislation that would affect our lending operations. For example, in Missouri, following last
year's failed ballot initiative, the same proponents have again commenced ballot initiatives to legislatively cap annual
interest rates at 36% and to constitutionally impose other interest rate limitations.

In addition, any adverse change in existing laws or regulations, or any adverse interpretation or litigation relating to
existing laws and regulations in any state in which we operate, could subject us to liability for prior operating
activities or could lower or eliminate the profitability of our operations going forward by, among other things,
reducing the amount of interest and fees we can charge in connection with our loans. If these or other factors lead us
to close our offices in a state, then in addition to the loss of net revenues attributable to that closing, we would also
incur closing costs such as lease cancellation payments and we would have to write off assets that we could no longer
use. If we were to suspend rather than permanently cease our operations in a state, we may also have continuing costs
associated with maintaining our offices and our employees in that state, with little or no revenues to offset those costs.

11
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Federal legislation. In addition to state and local laws and regulations, we are subject to numerous federal laws and
regulations that affect our lending operations. These laws include the Truth in Lending Act, the Equal Credit
Opportunity Act and the Fair Credit Reporting Act and the regulations thereunder and the Federal Trade
Commission's Credit Practices Rule. These laws require the Company to provide complete disclosure of the principal
terms of each loan to the borrower, prior to the consummation of the loan transaction, prohibit misleading advertising,
protect against discriminatory lending practices and proscribe unfair, deceptive or abusive credit practices. Among
the principal disclosure items under the Truth in Lending Act are the terms of repayment, the final maturity, the total
finance charge and the annual percentage rate charged on each loan. The Equal Credit Opportunity Act prohibits
creditors from discriminating against loan applicants on, among other things the basis of race, color, sex, age or
marital status. Pursuant to Regulation B promulgated under the Equal Credit Opportunity Act, creditors are required
to make certain disclosures regarding consumer rights and advise consumers whose credit applications are not
approved of the reasons for the rejection. The Fair Credit Reporting Act also requires the Company to provide certain
information to consumers whose credit applications are not approved on the basis of a report obtained from a
consumer reporting agency and to provide additional information to those borrowers whose loan are approved and
consummated if the credit decision was based in whole or in part on the contents of a credit report. The Credit
Practices Rule limits the types of property a creditor may accept as collateral to secure a consumer loan. Violations of
the statutes and regulations described above may result in actions for damages, claims for refund of payments made,
certain fines and penalties, injunctions against certain practices and the potential forfeiture of rights to repayment of
loans.

Although these laws and regulations remained substantially unchanged for many years, over the last several years the
laws and regulations directly affecting our lending activities have been under review and are subject to change as a
result of various developments and changes in economic conditions, the make-up of the executive and legislative
branches of government, and the political and media focus on issues of consumer and borrower protection. See Part I,
Item 1A, “Risk Factors - Media and public perception of consumer installment loans as being predatory or abusive
could materially adversely affect our business, prospects, results of operations and financial condition” below. Any
changes in such laws and regulations could force us to modify, suspend or cease part or, in the worst case, all of our
existing operations. It is also possible that the scope of federal regulations could change or expand in such a way as to
preempt what has traditionally been state law regulation of our business activities. The enactment of one or more of
such regulatory changes could materially and adversely affect our business, results of operations and prospects.

Various legislative proposals addressing consumer credit transactions have been passed in recent years or are currently
pending in the U.S. Congress. Congressional members continue to receive pressure from consumer activists and other
industry opposition groups to adopt legislation to address various aspects of consumer credit transactions. As part of a
sweeping package of financial industry reform regulations, in July 2010 Congress passed and the President signed into
law the “Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act” (the “Dodd-Frank Act”). This created, among
other things, a new federal regulatory entity, the Bureau of Consumer Financial Protection (commonly referred to as
the CFPB) with virtually unlimited power to regulate and enforce the form and content of all consumer financial
transactions. The CFPB continues to actively engage in the announcement and implementation of various plans and
initiatives in the area of consumer financial transactions. Notwithstanding that to date the CFPB's exercise of its
powers has not been directed at either the Company or its operations, there can be no assurance that in the future it
will not exercise its unprecedented powers in a manner that will, either directly or indirectly, have a material and
adverse effect on, or eliminate altogether, the Company's ability to operate its business profitably or on terms
substantially similar to those on which it currently operates. Although the Dodd-Frank Act prohibits the CFPB from
setting interest rates on consumer loans, efforts to create a federal usury cap, applicable to all consumer credit
transactions and substantially below rates at which the Company could continue to operate profitably, are still
ongoing. Any federal legislative or regulatory action that severely restricts or prohibits the provision of small-loan
consumer credit and similar services on terms substantially similar to those we currently provide would, if enacted,
have a material adverse impact on our business, prospects, results of operations and financial condition. Any federal
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law that would impose a national 36% or similar annualized credit rate cap on our services would, if enacted, almost
certainly eliminate our ability to continue our current operations. See Part I, Item 1A, “Risk Factors - Federal
legislative or regulatory proposals, initiatives, actions or changes that are adverse to our operations or result in adverse
regulatory proceedings, or our failure to comply with existing or future federal laws and regulations, could force us to
modify, suspend or cease part or all of our nationwide operations,” for further information regarding the potential
impact of adverse legislative and regulatory changes.
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Mexico Operations. Effective May 1, 2008, World Acceptance Corporation de Mexico, S. de R.L. de C.V. was
converted to WAC de Mexico, S.A. de C.V., SOFOM, E.N.R. (“WAC de Mexico SOFOM”), and due to such
conversion, this entity is now organized as a Sociedad Financiera de Objeto Multiple, Entidad No Regulada (Multiple
Purpose Financial Company, Non-Regulated Entity or “SOFOM, ENR”). Mexican law provides for administrative
regulation of companies which are organized as SOFOM, ENRs. As such, WAC de Mexico SOFOM is mainly
governed by different federal statutes, including the General Law of Auxiliary Credit Activities and Organizations, the
Law for the Transparency and Order of Financial Services, the General Law of Credit Instruments and Operations,
and the Law of Protection and Defense to the User of Financial Services. SOFOM, ENRs are also subject to regulation
by and surveillance of the National Commission for the Protection and Defense of Users of Financial Services
(“CONDUSEF”). CONDUSEF, among others, acts as mediator and arbitrator in disputes between financial lenders and
customers, and resolves claims filed by loan customers. CONDUSEF also prevents unfair and discriminatory lending
practices, and regulates, among others, the form of loan contracts, consumer disclosures, advertisement, and certain
operating procedures of SOFOM, ENRs, with such regulations pertaining primarily to consumer protection and
adequate disclosure and transparency in the terms of borrowing. Neither CONDUSEF nor federal statutes impose
interest rate caps on loans granted by SOFOM, ENRs. The consumer loan industry, as with most businesses in
Mexico, is also subject to other various regulations in the areas of tax compliance, anti-money laundering, and
employment matters, among others, by various federal, state and local governmental agencies. Generally, federal
regulations control over the state statutes with respect to the consumer loan operations of SOFOM, ENRs.

Available Information. The information regarding our website and availability of our filings with the SEC as
described in the second paragraph under “Introduction” above is incorporated by reference into this Item 1 of Part L.

Item 1A.  Risk Factors
Forward-Looking Statements

This annual report contains various “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section 21E of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 that are based on management’s beliefs and assumptions, as well as information currently
available to management. Statements other than those of historical fact, as well as those identified by the use of words
such as “anticipate,” “estimate,” “plan,” “expect,” “believe,” “may,” “will,” “should,” and any variations of the foregoing and :
expressions, are forward-looking statements. Although we believe that the expectations reflected in any such
forward-looking statements are reasonable, we can give no assurance that such expectations will prove to be

correct. Any such statements are subject to certain risks, uncertainties and assumptions. Should one or more of these
risks or uncertainties materialize, or should underlying assumptions prove incorrect, our actual financial results,
performance or financial condition may vary materially from those anticipated, estimated, expected or implied by any
forward-looking statements. Among the key factors that could cause our actual financial results, performance or
condition to differ from the expectations expressed or implied in such forward-looking statements are the following:
recently enacted, proposed or future legislation and the manner in which it is implemented; the nature and scope of
regulatory authority, particularly discretionary authority, that may be exercised by regulators having jurisdiction over
the Company’s business or consumer financial transactions generically; the impact of changes in accounting rules and
regulations, or their interpretation or application, which could materially and adversely affect the Company’s reported
financial statements or necessitate material delays or changes in the issuance of the Company’s audited financial
statements; the Company's assessment of its internal control over financial reporting, and the timing and effectiveness
of the Company's efforts to remediate any reported material weakness in its internal control over financial reporting,
which could lead to the Company to report further or unremediated material weaknesses in its internal control over
financial reporting: changes in interest rates; risks relating to expansion and foreign operations; risks inherent in
making loans, including repayment risks and value of collateral; the timing and amount of revenues that may be
recognized by the Company; changes in current revenue and expense trends (including trends affecting delinquency
and charge-offs); changes in the Company’s markets and general changes in the economy (particularly in the markets
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served by the Company); and the unpredictable nature of litigation. These and other risks are discussed below in more
detail below in this “Risk Factors” section and in the Company’s other filings made from time to time with the SEC. The
Company does not undertake any obligation to update any forward-looking statements it may make.

Investors should consider the following risk factors, in addition to the other information presented in this annual report
and the other reports and registration statements we file from time to time with the SEC, in evaluating us, our business
and an investment in our securities. Any of the following risks, as well as other risks, uncertainties, and possibly
inaccurate assumptions underlying our plans and expectations, could result in harm to our business, results of
operations and financial condition and cause the value of our securities to decline, which in turn could cause investors
to lose all or part of their investment in our Company. These factors, among others, could also cause actual results to
differ materially from those we have experienced in the past or those we may express or imply from time to time in
any forward-looking statements we make. Investors are advised that it is impossible to identify or predict all risks,
and that risks not currently known to us or that we currently deem immaterial also could affect us in the future.
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Unfavorable state legislative or regulatory actions or changes, adverse outcomes in litigation or regulatory
proceedings or failure to comply with existing laws and regulations could force us to cease, suspend or modify our
operations in a state, potentially resulting in a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and
financial condition.

We are subject to numerous state laws and regulations that affect our lending activities. Many of these regulations
impose detailed and complex constraints on the terms of our loans, lending forms and operations. Failure to comply
with applicable laws and regulations could subject us to regulatory enforcement action that could result in the
assessment against us of civil, monetary or other penalties, including the suspension or revocation of our licenses to
lend in one or more jurisdictions.

Changes in the laws under which we currently operate or the enactment of new laws governing our operations
resulting from state political activities and legislative or regulatory initiatives could have a material adverse effect on
all aspects of our business in a particular state. See Part 1, Item 1, “Description of Business—Government Regulation”
and "—State legislation" for further discussion of such current state activities and initiatives.

Federal legislative or regulatory proposals, initiatives, actions or changes that are adverse to our operations or result in
adverse regulatory proceedings, or our failure to comply with existing or future federal laws and regulations, could
force us to modify, suspend or cease part or all of our nationwide operations.

In addition to state and local laws and regulations, we are subject to numerous federal laws and regulations that affect
our lending operations. Although these laws and regulations have remained substantially unchanged for many years,
the laws and regulations directly affecting our lending activities have been under review and subject to change in
recent years as a result of various developments and changes in economic conditions, the make-up of the executive
and legislative branches of government, and the political and media focus on issues of consumer and borrower
protection. Any changes in such laws and regulations could force us to modify, suspend or cease part, or, in the worst
case, all of our existing operations. It is also possible that the scope of federal regulations could change or expand in
such a way as to preempt what has traditionally been state law regulation of our business activities. The enactment of
one or more of such regulatory changes, or the exercise of broad regulatory authority by regulators having jurisdiction
over the Company’s business or discretionary consumer financial transactions generally, could materially and
adversely affect our business, results of operations and prospects.

Changes in the laws under which we currently operate or the enactment of new laws governing our operations
resulting from federal political activities and legislative or regulatory initiatives could have a material adverse effect
on all aspects of our operations. See Part 1, Item 1, “Description of Business—Government Regulation” and "-Federal
legislation" for further discussion of such current federal activities and initiatives.

Media and public perception of consumer installment loans as being predatory or abusive could materially adversely
affect our business, prospects, results of operations and financial condition.

Consumer activist groups and various other media sources continue to advocate for governmental and regulatory
action to prohibit or severely restrict our products and services. These critics frequently characterize our products and
services as predatory or abusive toward consumers. If this negative characterization of the consumer installment loans
we make and/or ancillary services we provide becomes widely accepted by government policy makers or is embodied
in legislative, regulatory, policy or litigation developments that adversely affect our ability to continue offering our
products and services or the profitability of these products and services, our business, results of operations and
financial condition would be materially and adversely affected.
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Our continued expansion into Mexico may increase the risks inherent in conducting international operations,
contribute materially to increased costs and negatively affect our business, prospects, results of operations and
financial condition.

Although our operations in Mexico accounted for only 7.0% of our revenues during fiscal 2013 and 8.0% of our gross
loans receivable at March 31, 2013, we intend to continue opening offices and expanding our presence in Mexico. In
addition, if and to the extent that the state and federal regulatory climate in the U.S. changes in ways that adversely
affect our ability to continue profitable operations in one or more U.S. states, we could become increasingly
dependent on our operations in Mexico as our only viable expansion or growth strategy. In doing so, we may expose
an increasing portion of our business to risks inherent in conducting international operations, including currency
fluctuations and devaluations, unsettled political and social conditions, communication and translation errors due to
language barriers, compliance with differing legal and regulatory regimes and differing cultural attitudes toward
regulation and compliance.
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We are subject to interest rate risk resulting from general economic conditions and policies of various governmental
and regulatory agencies.

Interest rates are highly sensitive to many factors that are beyond our control, including general economic conditions
and policies of various governmental and regulatory agencies and, in particular, the Federal Reserve Board. Changes
in monetary policy, including changes in interest rates, could influence the amount of interest we pay on our revolving
credit facility or any other floating interest rate obligations we may incur, which would increase our operating costs
and decrease our operating margins. See Part II, Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations—Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk™ for additional
information regarding our interest rate risk.

Our use of derivatives exposes us to credit and market risk.

From time to time we may use derivatives to manage our exposure to interest rate risk and foreign currency
fluctuations. By using derivative instruments, the Company is exposed to credit and market risk. Additional
information regarding our exposure to credit and market risk is included in Part II, Item 7, “Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market
Risk.”

We depend to a substantial extent on borrowings under our revolving credit agreement to fund our liquidity needs.

We have an existing revolving credit agreement committed through November 19, 2014 that allows us to borrow up to
$680.0 million, assuming we are in compliance with a number of covenants and conditions. If our existing sources of
liquidity become insufficient to satisfy our financial needs or our access to these sources becomes unexpectedly
restricted, we may need to try to raise additional debt or equity in the future. If such an event were to occur, we can
give no assurance that such alternate sources of liquidity would be available to us at all or on favorable

terms. Additional information regarding our liquidity risk is included in Part II, Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Liquidity and Capital Resources.”

Our debt agreements contain restrictions and limitations that could affect our ability to operate our business.

Our revolving credit agreement contains a number of covenants that could adversely affect our business and the
flexibility to respond to changing business and economic conditions or opportunities. Among other things, these
covenants limit our ability to declare or pay dividends, incur additional debt or enter into a merger, consolidation or
sale of substantial assets. In addition, if we were to breach any covenants or obligations under our revolving credit
agreement and such breach were to result in an event of default, our lenders could cause all amounts outstanding to
become due and payable, subject to applicable grace periods. This could trigger cross-defaults under future debt
instruments and materially and adversely affect our financial condition and ability to continue operating our business
as a going concern. Additional information regarding our revolving credit facility is included in Part II, Item 7
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Liquidity and Capital
Resources.”

Adverse conditions in the capital and credit markets generally, any particular liquidity problems affecting one or more
members of the syndicate of banks that are members of the Company’s credit facility or other factors outside our
control, could affect the Company’s ability to meet its liquidity needs and its cost of capital.

The severe turmoil that has persisted in the domestic and global credit and capital markets and broader economy since

2008 has negatively affected corporate liquidity, equity values, credit agency ratings and confidence in financial
institutions in general. In addition to cash generated from operations, the Company depends on borrowings from

31



Edgar Filing: WORLD ACCEPTANCE CORP - Form 10-K/A

institutional lenders to finance its operations, acquisitions and office expansion plans. The Company is not insulated
from the pressures and potentially negative consequences of the recent financial crisis and similar risks beyond our
control that have and may continue to affect the capital and credit markets, the broader economy, the financial services
industry or the segment of that industry in which we operate. Additional information regarding our liquidity and
related risks is included in Part II, Item 7 “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results
of Operations—Liquidity and Capital Resources.”
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We are exposed to credit risk in our lending activities.

Our ability to collect on loans to individuals, our single largest asset group, depends on the willingness and repayment
ability of our borrowers. Any material adverse change in the ability or willingness of a significant portion of our
borrowers to meet their obligations to us, whether due to changes in economic conditions, unemployment rates, the

cost of consumer goods (particularly, but not limited to, food and energy costs), disposable income, interest rates,

natural disasters, acts of war or terrorism, or other causes over which we have no control, would have a material

adverse impact on our earnings and financial condition. Additional information regarding our credit risk is included in
Part II, Item 7 “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation—Credit Quality.”

If our estimates of loan losses are not adequate to absorb actual losses, our provision for loan losses would
increase. This would result in a decline in our future revenues and earnings.

We maintain an allowance for loan losses for loans we make directly to consumers. This allowance is an estimate. If
our actual loan losses exceed the assumption used to establish the allowance, our provision for loan losses would
increase, which would result in a decline in our future revenues and earnings. Additional information regarding our
allowance for loan losses is included in Part II, Item 7 “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations—Credit Quality.”

We reported a material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting, and if we are unable to improve our
internal controls, our financial results may not be accurately reported.

Management's assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of March 31, 2013
identified a material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting relating to the lack of a documented
policy regarding the establishment and assumptions underlying the allowance for loan losses and the lack of a control
to assess whether the accounting treatment of renewals was in accordance with U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles and the impact that these modifications may have on the allowance for loan losses, as described in Part II,
Item 9A, "Controls and Procedures.” A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over financial reporting such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the
Company's annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. This material
weakness, or difficulties encountered in implementing new or improved controls or remediation, could impact our
ability to accurately reporting our financial results, result in a material misstatement in our financial statements or
cause us to fail to meet our reporting obligations. Failure to comply with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002 could negatively affect our business, the price of our common stock, market confidence in our reported financial
information, and our cost of capital. The Company cannot provide any assurance regarding the timing or completion
of these remediation efforts or whether or not the Company's internal control over financial reporting will be effective
as a result of these efforts.

The concentration of our revenues in certain states could adversely affect us.

We currently operate consumer installment loan offices in 13 states in the United States. Any adverse legislative or
regulatory change in any one of our states, but particularly in any of our larger states could have a material adverse
effect on our business, prospects, and results of operation or financial condition. See Part I, Item 1, "Description of
Business" for information regarding the size of our business in the various states in which we operate.

We have goodwill which is subject to periodic review and testing for impairment.

A portion of our total assets at March 31, 2013 is comprised of goodwill. Under generally accepted accounting
principles, goodwill is subject to periodic review and testing to determine if it is impaired. Unfavorable trends in our
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industry and unfavorable events or disruptions to our operations resulting from adverse legislative or regulatory
actions or from other unpredictable causes could result in significant goodwill impairment charges.

Controls and procedures may fail or be circumvented.

Controls and procedures are particularly important for small-loan consumer finance companies. Any system of
controls, however well designed and operated, is based in part on certain assumptions and can provide only
reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the system are met. Any failure or circumvention of our
controls and procedures or failure to comply with regulations related to controls and procedures could have a material
adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

16

34



Edgar Filing: WORLD ACCEPTANCE CORP - Form 10-K/A

Table of Contents
If we lose the services of any of our key management personnel, our business could suffer.

Our future success significantly depends on the continued services and performance of our key management
personnel. Competition for these employees is intense. The loss of the services of members of our senior management
or key team members or the inability to attract additional qualified personnel as needed could materially harm our
business.

Regular turnover among our managers and other employees at our offices makes it more difficult for us to operate our
offices and increases our costs of operations, which could have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations
and financial condition.

The annual turnover as of March 31, 2013 among our office employees was approximately 28.0%. This turnover
increases our cost of operations and makes it more difficult to operate our offices. If we are unable to keep our
employee turnover rates consistent with historical levels or if unanticipated problems arise from our high employee
turnover, our business, results of operations and financial condition could be adversely affected.

Our ability to manage our growth may deteriorate, and our ability to execute our growth strategy may be adversely
affected.

We have experienced substantial growth in recent years. Our growth strategy, which is based on opening and
acquiring offices in existing and new markets, is subject to significant risks, some of which are beyond our control,
including:

the prevailing laws and regulatory environment of each state in which we operate or seek to operate, and, to the extent
applicable, federal laws and regulations, which are subject to change at any time;

our ability to obtain and maintain any regulatory approvals, government permits or licenses that may be required;

the degree of competition in new markets and its effect on our ability to attract new customers;

our ability to obtain adequate financing for our expansion plans; and

our ability to attract, train and retain qualified personnel to staff our new operations.

We currently lack product and business diversification; as a result, our revenues and earnings may be
disproportionately negatively impacted by external factors and may be more susceptible to fluctuations than more
diversified companies.

Our primary business activity is offering small consumer installment loans together with, in some states in which we
operate, related ancillary products. Thus, any developments, whether regulatory, economic or otherwise, that would
hinder, reduce the profitability of or limit our ability to operate our small consumer installment loan business on the
terms currently conducted would have a direct and adverse impact on our business, profitability and perhaps even our
viability. Our current lack of product and business diversification could inhibit our opportunities for growth, reduce
our revenues and profits and make us more susceptible to earnings fluctuations than many other financial institutions
whose operations are more diversified.

Interruption of, or a breach in security relating to, our information systems could adversely affect us.

We rely heavily on communications and information systems to conduct our business. Each office is part of an
information network that is designed to permit us to maintain adequate cash inventory, reconcile cash balances on a
daily basis and report revenues and expenses to our headquarters. Any failure, interruption or breach in security of
these systems, including any failure of our back-up systems, could result in failures or disruptions in our customer
relationship management, general ledger, loan and other systems and could result in a loss of customer business,
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subject us to additional regulatory scrutiny or negative publicity, or expose us to civil litigation and possible financial
liability, any of which could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.

Our centralized headquarters functions are susceptible to disruption by catastrophic events, which could have a
material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Our headquarters building is located in Greenville, South Carolina. Our information systems and administrative and
management processes are primarily provided to our offices from this centralized location, and they could be
disrupted if a catastrophic event, such as severe weather, natural disaster, power outage, act of terror or similar event,
destroyed or severely damaged our headquarters. Any such catastrophic event or other unexpected disruption of our
headquarters functions could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial
condition.
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Absence of dividends could reduce our attractiveness to investors.

Since 1989, we have not declared or paid cash dividends on our common stock and may not pay cash dividends in the
foreseeable future. As a result, our common stock may be less attractive to certain investors than the stock of
dividend-paying companies.

Various provisions of our charter documents and applicable laws could delay or prevent a change of control that
shareholders may favor.

Provisions of our articles of incorporation, South Carolina law, and the laws in several of the states in which our
operating subsidiaries are incorporated could delay or prevent a change of control that the holders of our common
stock may favor or may impede the ability of our shareholders to change our management. In particular, our articles
of incorporation and South Carolina law, among other things, authorize our board of directors to issue preferred stock
in one or more series, without shareholder approval, and will require the affirmative vote of holders of two-thirds of
our outstanding shares of voting stock, to approve our merger or consolidation with another corporation. Additional
information regarding the similar effect of laws in certain states in which we operate is described in Part 1, Item 1,
“Description of Business — Government Regulation.”

Overall stock market volatility may materially and adversely affect the market price of our common stock.

The Company’s common stock price has been and is likely to continue to be subject to significant volatility. A variety
of factors could cause the price of the common stock to fluctuate, perhaps substantially, including: general market
fluctuations resulting from factors not directly related to the Company’s operations or the inherent value of its common
stock; state or federal legislative or regulatory proposals, initiatives, actions or changes that are, or are perceived to be,
adverse to our operations; announcements of developments related to our business; fluctuations in our operating
results and the provision for loan losses; low trading volume in our common stock; decreased availability of our
common stock resulting from stock repurchases and concentrations of ownership by institutional investors; general
conditions in the financial service industry, the domestic or global economy or the domestic or global credit or capital
markets; changes in financial estimates by securities analysts; our failure to meet the expectations of securities
analysts or investors; negative commentary regarding our Company and corresponding short-selling market behavior;
adverse developments in our relationships with our customers; legal proceedings brought against the Company or its
officers; or significant changes in our senior management team.

Changes to accounting rules, regulations or interpretations could significantly affect our financial results.
New accounting rules or regulations, changes to existing accounting rules or regulations and changing interpretations
of existing rules and regulations have and may continue to be issued or occur in the future. Any such changes to

accounting rules, regulations or interpretations could negatively affect our reported results of operations and could
negatively affect our financial condition through increased cost of compliance.

Item 1B.  Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

Item 2. Properties

The Company owns its headquarters facility of approximately 21,000 square feet and a printing and mailing facility of
approximately 13,000 square feet in Greenville, South Carolina, and all of the furniture, fixtures and computer

terminals located in each branch office. As of March 31, 2013, the Company had 1,203 branch offices, most of which
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are leased pursuant to short-term operating leases. During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013, total lease expense
was approximately $21.9 million, or an average of approximately $18,600 per office. The Company's leases generally
provide for an initial three- to five-year term with renewal options. The Company's branch offices are typically
located in shopping centers, malls and the first floors of downtown buildings. Branches in the U.S. offices generally
have a uniform physical layout with an average size of 1,500 square feet and in Mexico with an average size of 1,725
square feet.

18

38



Edgar Filing: WORLD ACCEPTANCE CORP - Form 10-K/A

Table of Contents

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

From time to time the Company is involved in routine litigation relating to claims arising out of its operations in the
normal course of business, including matters in which damages in various amounts are claimed. While the outcome
of litigation is by its nature uncertain, based on current knowledge, management does not believe that the outcome of
any such pending matters to which it is a party will have a material adverse effect on the Company’s results of
operations or financial condition taken as a whole.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

None.
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PART IL

Ttem S Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity

" Securities

Since November 26, 1991, the Company's common stock has traded on NASDAQ, currently on the NASDAQ Global
Select Market ("NASDAQ"), under the symbol WRLD. As of- June 5, 2013, there were 66 holders of record of
Common Stock and a significant number of persons or entities who hold their stock in nominee or “street” names
through various brokerage firms.

Since April 1989, the Company has not declared or paid any cash dividends on its common stock. Its policy has been
to retain earnings for use in its business and selectively use cash to repurchase its common stock on the open

market. In the future, the Company's Board of Directors will determine whether to pay cash dividends based on
conditions then existing, including the Company's earnings, financial condition, capital requirements and other
relevant factors. In addition, the Company's credit agreements contain certain restrictions on the payment of cash
dividends on its capital stock. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations-Liquidity and Capital Resources.”

On February 27, 2013, the Board of Directors authorized the Company to repurchase up to $25.0 million of the
Company’s common stock. This repurchase authorization follows, and is in addition to, a similar repurchase
authorization of $75.0 million announced on November 19, 2012. After taking into account all shares repurchased
through June 14, 2013, the Company has $29.6 million in aggregate remaining repurchase capacity under all of the
Company’s outstanding repurchase authorizations. The timing and actual number of shares repurchased will depend
on a variety of factors, including the stock price, corporate and regulatory requirements and other market and
economic conditions. Although the repurchase authorizations above have no stated expiration date, the Company’s
stock repurchase program may be suspended or discontinued at any time.

The following table provides information with respect to purchases made by the Company of shares of the Company’s
common stock during the three month period ended March 31, 2013:

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Total Dollar ~ Approximate

Value Dollar Value of
of Shares Shares That
Total Number Average Purchased as  May
of Shares Price Paid part Yet be
Purchased per Share of Publicly Purchased
Announced Under the
Plans Plans
or Programs  or Programs
January 1 through January 31, 2013 250,207 $74.21 18,568,492 $15,833,454
February 1 through February 28, 2013 127,213 77.53 9,862,409 30,971,045 *
March 1 through March 31, 2013 174,500 77.90 13,593,855 17,377,190
Total for the quarter 551,920 $76.14 42,024,756

* On February 27, 2013, the Board of Directors authorized the Company to repurchase up to $25 million of the
Company’s common stock. This repurchase authorization follows, and is in addition to, a similar repurchase
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authorization of $75 million announced on November 19, 2012.
The timing and actual number of shares repurchased will depend on a variety of factors, including the stock price,

corporate and regulatory requirements and other market and economic conditions. The Company’s stock repurchase
program is not subject to specific targets or any expiration date, but may be suspended or discontinued at any time.
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The table below reflects the stock prices published by NASDAQ by quarter for the last two fiscal years. The last
reported sale price on June 12, 2013 was $92.69.

Market Price of Common Stock

Fiscal 2013

Quarter High Low
First $71.09 $57.03
Second 79.11 65.12
Third 75.28 61.00
Fourth 87.19 72.12

Market Price of Common Stock

Fiscal 2012

Quarter High Low
First $68.90 $58.85
Second 70.13 55.65
Third 74.48 53.56
Fourth 74.95 61.18
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data
Selected Consolidated Financial and Other Data

(Amounts in thousands, except per share amounts)

Years Ended March 31,

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Statement of Operations Data:
Interest and fee income $505,495 $466,481 $424,594 $375,031 $331,454
.Insurance commissions and other 78.222 73.681 66.851 65.605 60.698
income
Total revenues 583,717 540,162 491,445 440,636 392,152
Provision for loan losses 114,323 105,706 95,908 90,299 85,476
General and administrative expenses 285,710 260,684 237,515 217,012 200,216
Interest expense 17,394 13,899 14,773 13,881 14,886
Total expenses 417,427 380,289 348,196 321,192 300,578
Income before income taxes 166,290 159,873 143,249 119,444 91,574
Income taxes 62,201 59,179 52,000 45,783 35,081
Net income $104,089 $100,694 $91,249 $73,661 $56,493
Net income per common share $7.88 $6.59 $5.63 $4.45 $3.43
(diluted)
Diluted weighted average shares 13,214 15,289 16,210 16,546 16,464

Balance Sheet Data (end of period):
Loans receivable, net of unearned and

$782,096 $715,085 $646,072 $571,086 $498,433
deferred fees

Allowance for loan losses (59,981 ) (54,507 ) (48,355 ) (42,897 ) (38,021 )
Loans receivable, net 722,115 660,578 597,717 528,189 460,412

Total assets 809,325 735,003 666,397 593,052 526,094

Total debt 400,250 279,250 187,430 170,642 197,042
Shareholders' equity 366,396 418,875 442,575 382,948 296,335

Other Operating Data:

As a percentage of average net loans receivable:

Provision for loan losses 14.6 % 14.9 % 15.1 % 16.3 % 17.6 %
Net charge-offs 13.9 % 14.0 % 14.3 % 15.5 % 16.7 %
Number of offices open at year-end 1,203 1,137 1,067 990 944

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

General

The Company's financial performance continues to be dependent in large part upon the growth in its outstanding loans
receivable, the maintenance of loan quality and acceptable levels of operating expenses. Since March 31, 2009, gross
loans receivable have increased at a 9.7% annual compounded rate from $671.2 million to $1.1 billion at March 31,
2013. The increase reflects both the higher volume of loans generated through the Company's existing offices and the
contribution of loans generated from new offices opened or acquired over the period. During this same five-year
period, the Company has grown from 838 offices to 1,203 offices as of March 31, 2013. During fiscal 2014, the
Company plans to open approximately 50 new offices in the United States and 15 new offices in Mexico and also to
evaluate acquisitions as opportunities arise.
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The Company's ParaData Financial Systems subsidiary provides data processing systems to 105 separate finance
companies, including the Company, and currently supports over 1,875 individual branch offices in 44 states and
Mexico. ParaData’s revenue is highly dependent upon its ability to attract new customers, which often requires
substantial lead time, and as a result its revenue may fluctuate from year to year. Its net revenues from system sales
and support amounted to $2.1 million, $2.3 million and $1.9 million in fiscal 2013, 2012 and 2011,

respectively. ParaData’s net revenue to the Company will continue to fluctuate on a year to year basis. ParaData
continues to provide data processing support for the Company’s in-house integrated computer system at a substantially
reduced cost to the Company.

The Company offers an income tax return preparation and electronic filing program in all but a few of its U.S.

offices. The Company prepared approximately 50,000, 44,000 and 48,000 returns in each of the fiscal years 2013,
2012 and 2011, respectively. Revenues from the Company’s tax preparation business amounted to approximately $8.7
million, a 9.8% increase over the $7.9 million earned during fiscal 2012.

The following table sets forth certain information derived from the Company's consolidated statements of operations
and balance sheets, as well as operating data and ratios, for the periods indicated:

Years Ended March 31,

2013 2012 2011

(Dollars in thousands)
Average gross loans receivable (1) $1,072,500 965,044 860,538
Average net loans receivable (2) 782,212 707,244 633,748
Expenses as a percentage of total revenues:
Provision for loan losses 19.6 % 19.6 % 19.5 %
General and administrative 48.9 % 48.3 % 48.3 %
Total interest expense 3.0 % 2.6 % 3.0 %
Operating margin (3) 31.5 % 32.2 % 32.2 %
Return on average assets 13.0 % 13.9 % 13.9 %
Offices opened and acquired, net 66 70 77
Total offices (at period end) 1,203 1,137 1,067
(I)Average gross loans receivable have been determined by averaging month-end gross loans receivable over the

indicated period.

Average net loans receivable have been determined by averaging month-end gross loans receivable less unearned
interest and deferred fees over the indicated period.

Operating margin is computed as total revenues less provision for loan losses and general and administrative
expenses as a percentage of total revenues.

2
3)

Comparison of Fiscal 2013 Versus Fiscal 2012

Net income was $104.1 million during fiscal 2013, a 3.4% increase over the $100.7 million earned during fiscal 2012
. This increase resulted primarily from an increase in operating income (revenues less provision for loan losses and
general and administrative expenses) of $9.9 million, or 5.7%, partially offset by a $3.0 million increase in income tax
expense.

Total revenues increased to $583.7 million in fiscal 2013, a $43.6 million, or 8.1%, increase over the $540.2 million in

fiscal 2012 . Revenues from the 1,062 offices open throughout both fiscal years increased by 5.5%. At March 31,
2013, the Company had 1,203 offices in operation, an increase of 66 offices from March 31, 2012.
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Interest and fee income during fiscal 2013 increased by $39.0 million, or 8.4%, over fiscal 2012. This increase
resulted from an increase of $75.0 million, or 10.6%, in average net loans receivable between the two fiscal

years. The increase in average loans receivable was attributable to the Company’s internal growth. During fiscal
2013, internal growth increased because the Company opened 66 new offices and the average loan balance increased
from $1,056 to $1,115. In addition, the Company completed its change in interest recognition from the cash/Rule of
78's method to the accrual/actuarial method at the end of the current fiscal year. Also, as expected, the change resulted
in an increase in interest and fees of approximately $2.2 million during the quarterly period. This increase in revenue
was not a material difference in the expected annual earnings between the two methods, but resulted from the timing
of month end, which was on a Sunday. This amount was approximately the same as the amount of recognized interest
and fee income shift the Company experienced at the end of the second fiscal quarter. Now that the Company has
converted to the accrual/actuarial method, there should be more consistency in earnings on a quarterly basis going
forward.

Insurance commissions and other income increased by $4.5 million, or 6.2%, over the two fiscal years. Insurance
commissions increased by $4.1 million, or 8.7%, as a result of the increase in loan volume in states where credit
insurance is sold. Other income increased by $0.4 million, or 1.6%, when comparing the two fiscal periods.

The provision for loan losses during fiscal 2013 increased by $8.6 million, or 8.2%, from the previous year. This
increase resulted from a combination of increases in both the allowance for loan losses and the amount of loans
charged off. Net charge-offs for fiscal 2013 amounted to $109.0 million, a 9.8% increase over the $99.3 million
charged off during fiscal 2012. Accounts that were 61 days or more past due were 2.7% and 2.5% on a recency basis,
and were 4.4% and 4.0% on a contractual basis at both March 31, 2013 and March 31, 2012. During the current fiscal
year, the Company has also had a reduction in year-over-year loan loss ratios. Annualized net charge-offs as a
percentage of average net loans decreased from 14.0% during fiscal 2012 to 13.9% during fiscal 2013. The current
year charge-off ratio of 13.9% is below historical levels, and the Company does not expect the ratio to decrease
meaningfully below this level for the foreseeable future. Historically from fiscal 2002 to fiscal 2006, the charge-offs
as a percent of average loans ranged from 14.6% to 14.8%. In fiscal 2007 the Company experienced a temporary
decline to 13.3%, which was attributed to a change in the bankruptcy law but returned to 14.5% in fiscal 2008. In
fiscal 2009 the ratio increased to 16.7%, the highest in the Company’s history as a result of the difficult economic
environment and higher energy costs that our customers faced, but has been declining since.

General and administrative expenses during fiscal 2013 increased to $285.7 million, or 9.6%, over the previous fiscal
year. Equity-based compensation increased approximately $4.4 million in fiscal 2013 compared to fiscal 2012. Of
this increase $3.8 million was due to the Compensation Committee's decision to make a larger than normal equity
grant to officers and directors that will cover a period of five years, rather than awarding annual grants. The impact on
expenses related to this grant will be substantial over the next several years, depending upon managements' ability to
achieve certain predetermined performance goals. The remaining increase was due primarily to costs associated with
the new offices opened or acquired during the fiscal year. General and administrative expenses, when divided by
average open offices, increased slightly when comparing the two fiscal years and, overall, general and administrative
expenses as a percent of total revenues increased to 48.9% in fiscal 2013 from 48.3% in fiscal 2012, respectively.

Interest expense increased by $3.5 million, or 25.1%, during fiscal 2013, as compared to the previous fiscal year as a
result of an increase in average debt outstanding of 46.4%.

Income tax expense increased $3.0 million, or 5.1%, primarily from an increase in pre-tax income. The effective rate
increased to 37.4% in fiscal 2013 from 37.0% in fiscal 2012 due to the recognition of the benefit of state refund claims
that resulted in a tax benefit in the prior year.

Comparison of Fiscal 2012 Versus Fiscal 2011
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Net income was $100.7 million during fiscal 2012, a 10.4% increase over the $91.2 million earned during fiscal
2011. This increase resulted primarily from an increase in operating income of $173.8 million, or 10.0%, partially
offset by a $7.2 million increase in income tax expense.

Total revenues increased to $540.2 million in fiscal 2012, a $48.7 million, or 9.9%, increase over the $491.4 million in
fiscal 2011. Revenues from the 988 offices open throughout both fiscal years increased by 6.8%. At March 31,
2012, the Company had 1,137 offices in operation, an increase of 70 offices from March 31, 2011.

Interest and fee income during fiscal 2012 increased by $41.9 million, or 9.9%, over fiscal 2011. This increase
resulted from an increase of $73.5 million, or 11.6%, in average net loans receivable between the two fiscal

years. The increase in average loans receivable was attributable to the Company’s internal growth. During fiscal
2012, internal growth increased because the Company opened 70 new offices and the average loan balance increased
from $1,009 to $1,056.
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Insurance commissions and other income increased by $6.8 million, or 10.2%, over the two fiscal years. Insurance
commissions increased by $5.5 million, or 13.3%, as a result of the increase in loan volume in states where credit
insurance is sold. Other income increased by $1.3 million, or 5.2%, over the two years, primarily due to a $574,000
increase in World Class Buying Club sales, and a $613,000 increase in motor club product sales, and a $423,000
increase in credit accident and health. These increases were consistent with the increases in loan volumes during the
year. This increase was offset by a $319,000 gain on the interest rate swap during the year.

The provision for loan losses during fiscal 2012 increased by $9.8 million, or 10.2%, from the previous year. This
increase resulted from a combination of increases in both the allowance for loan losses and the amount of loans
charged off. Net charge-offs for fiscal 2012 amounted to $99.3 million, a 9.7% increase over the $90.6 million
charged off during fiscal 2011. Accounts that were 61 days or more past due were 2.5% and 2.4% on a recency basis,
and were 4.0% and 3.8% on a contractual basis at both March 31, 2012 and March 31, 2011. During fiscal 2012, the
Company also had a reduction in year-over-year loan loss ratios. Annualized net charge-offs as a percentage of
average net loans decreased from 14.3% during fiscal 2011 to 14.0% during fiscal 2012.

General and administrative expenses during fiscal 2012 increased to $260.7 million, or 9.8%, over the previous fiscal
year. This increase was due primarily to costs associated with the new offices opened or acquired during the fiscal
year. General and administrative expenses, when divided by average open offices, increased slightly when comparing
the two fiscal years and, overall, general and administrative expenses as a percent of total revenues remained
relatively the same at 48.3% for fiscal 2011 and 2012.

Interest expense decreased by $874,000, or 5.9%, during fiscal 2012, as compared to the previous fiscal
year. Although average debt outstanding increased by 17.1%, average interest rates decreased, which resulted in this
interest expense decrease. Average interest rates decreased from 6.7% in fiscal 2011 to 5.4% in fiscal 2012.

Income tax expense increased $7.2 million, or 13.8%, primarily from an increase in pre-tax income. The effective rate
increased to 37.0% in fiscal 2012 from 36.3% in fiscal 2011 due partially from an income tax settlement with the state
of South Carolina for tax years March 31, 1997 through March 31, 2006, which resulted in the Company recognizing
a tax benefit of approximately $900,000 in the prior year.

Critical Accounting Policies

The Company’s accounting and reporting policies are in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
and conform to general practices within the finance company industry. The significant accounting policies used in the
preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements are discussed in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial

Statements. Certain critical accounting policies involve significant judgment by the Company’s management,
including the use of estimates and assumptions which affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues, and
expenses. As a result, changes in these estimates and assumptions could significantly affect the Company’s financial
position and results of operations. The Company considers its policies regarding the allowance for loan losses,
share-based compensation, and income taxes to be its most critical accounting policies due to the significant degree of
management judgment involved.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The Company has developed policies and procedures for assessing the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses that
take into consideration various assumptions and estimates with respect to the loan portfolio. The Company’s
assumptions and estimates may be affected in the future by changes in economic conditions, among other factors. For
additional discussion concerning the allowance for loan losses, see “Credit Quality” below.
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Share-Based Compensation

The Company measures compensation cost for share-based awards at fair value and recognizes compensation over the
service period for awards expected to vest. The fair value of restricted stock is based on the number of shares granted
and the quoted price of our common stock at the time of grant, and the fair value of stock options is determined using
the Black-Scholes valuation model. The Black-Scholes model requires the input of highly subjective assumptions,
including expected volatility, risk-free interest rate and expected life, changes to which can materially affect the fair
value estimate. In addition, the estimation of share-based awards that will ultimately vest requires judgment, and to
the extent actual results or updated estimates differ from our current estimates, such amounts will be recorded as a
cumulative adjustment in the period that the estimates are revised. The Company considers many factors when
estimating expected forfeitures, including types of awards, employee class, and historical experience. Actual results,
and future changes in estimates, may differ substantially from our current estimates.
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Income Taxes

Management uses certain assumptions and estimates in determining income taxes payable or refundable, deferred
income tax liabilities and assets for events recognized differently in its financial statements and income tax returns,
and income tax expense. Determining these amounts requires analysis of certain transactions and interpretation of tax
laws and regulations. Management exercises considerable judgment in evaluating the amount and timing of
recognition of the resulting income tax liabilities and assets. These judgments and estimates are re-evaluated on a
periodic basis as regulatory and business factors change.

No assurance can be given that either the tax returns submitted by management or the income tax reported on the
Consolidated Financial Statements will not be adjusted by either adverse rulings by the U.S. Tax Court, changes in the
tax code, or assessments made by the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) or state taxing authorities. The Company is
subject to potential adverse adjustments, including but not limited to: an increase in the statutory federal or state
income tax rates, the permanent non-deductibility of amounts currently considered deductible either now or in future
periods, and the dependency on the generation of future taxable income in order to ultimately realize deferred income
tax assets.

Under FASB ASC 740, the Company includes the current and deferred tax impact of its tax positions in the financial
statements when it is more likely than not (likelihood of greater than 50%) that such positions will be sustained by
taxing authorities, with full knowledge of relevant information, based on the technical merits of the tax position.
While the Company supports its tax positions by unambiguous tax law, prior experience with the taxing authority, and
analysis that considers all relevant facts, circumstances and regulations, management must still rely on assumptions
and estimates to determine the overall likelihood of success and proper quantification of a given tax position.

Credit Quality

The Company’s delinquency and net charge-off ratios reflect, among other factors, changes in the mix of loans in the
portfolio, the quality of receivables, the success of collection efforts, bankruptcy trends and general economic
conditions.

Delinquency is computed on the basis of the date of the last full contractual payment, as the Company does not accept
partial payments, on a loan (known as the recency method) and on the basis of the amount past due in accordance with
original payment terms of a loan (known as the contractual method). Upon renewal, the contractual delinquency of a
loan is measured based upon the terms of the new agreement, and is not impacted by the renewed loan's classification
as a new loan or modification of the existing loan. Management closely monitors portfolio delinquency using both
methods to measure the quality of the Company's loan portfolio and the probability of credit losses.

The following table classifies the gross loans receivable of the Company that were delinquent on a contractual basis
for at least 61 days at March 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011:

At March 31,
2013 2012 2011
(Dollars in thousands)

Contractual basis:

61-90 days past due $22,773 17,320 16,564
91 days or more past due 23,941 21,307 16,625
Total $46,714 38,627 33,189
Percentage of period-end gross loans receivable 4.4 % 4.0 % 3.8 %
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In fiscal 2013 approximately 84.6% of the Company’s loans were generated through refinancings of outstanding loans
and the origination of new loans to previous customers. A refinancing represents a new transaction with a present
customer in which a portion of the proceeds are used to repay the balance of an existing loan and the remaining
portion is advanced to the customer. For fiscal 2013, 2012, and 2011, the percentages of the Company’s loan
originations that were refinancings of existing loans were 75.3%, 75.9%, and 75.9%, respectively. The Company’s
refinancing policies, while limited by state regulations, in all cases consider the customer’s payment history and
require that the customer has made multiple payments on the loan being considered for refinancing. A refinancing is
considered a current refinancing if the customer is no more than 45 days delinquent on a contractual basis. Delinquent
refinancings may be extended to customers who are more than 45 days past due on a contractual basis if the customer
completes a new application and the manager believes that the customer’s ability and intent to repay has improved. It
is the Company’s policy to not refinance delinquent loans in amounts greater than the original amounts financed. In all
cases, a customer must complete a new application every two years. During fiscal 2013 and 2012, delinquent
refinancings represented 1.4% and 1.6%, respectively, of the Company’s total loan volume.

Charge-offs, as a percentage of loans made by category, are greatest on loans made to new borrowers and less on
loans made to former borrowers and refinancings. This is as expected due to the payment history experience available
on repeat borrowers. However, as a percentage of total loans charged off, refinancings represent the greatest
percentage due to the volume of loans made in this category. The following table depicts the charge-offs as a percent
of loans made by category and as a percent of total charge-offs during fiscal 2013:

Charge-off as a

Loan Volume g?)rt(;i:m of Percent of Total
by Category Charge-offs Loans Made by
Category
Refinancing 75.3 % 74.2 % 4.8 %
Former borrowers 9.3 % 5.5 % 3.5 %
New borrowers 154 % 20.3 % 10.6 %
100.0 % 100.0 %

The Company maintains an allowance for loan losses in an amount that, in management's opinion, is adequate to
provide for losses inherent in the existing loan portfolio. The Company charges against current earnings, as a
provision for loan losses, amounts added to the allowance to maintain it at levels expected to cover probable losses of
principal. When establishing the allowance for loan losses, the Company takes into consideration the growth of the
loan portfolio, current levels of charge-offs, current levels of delinquencies, and current economic factors.

The Company uses a mathematical calculation to determine the initial allowance at the end of each reporting period.
The calculation originated as management's estimate of future charge-offs and is used to allocate expenses to the
branch level. There are two components when calculating the allowance for loan losses, which the Company refers to
as the general reserve and the specific reserve. This calculation is a starting point and over time, and as needed,
additional provisions have been added as determined by management to make the allowance adequate.

The general reserve is 4.25% of the gross loan portfolio. The specific reserve represents 100% of all loans 91 or more
days past due on a recency basis, including bankrupt accounts in that category. This methodology is based on
historical data showing that the collection of loans 91 days or more past due and bankrupt accounts is remote.

A process is then performed to determine the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses, as well as considering trends
in current levels of delinquencies, charge-off levels, and economic trends (such as energy and food prices). The
primary tool used is the movement model (on a contractual and recency basis) which considers the rolling twelve
months of delinquency to determine expected charge-offs. The sum of expected charge-offs, determined from the
movement model (on a contractual and recency basis) plus the amount of delinquent renewals are compared to the
allowance resulting from the mathematical calculation to determine if any adjustments are needed to make the
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allowance adequate. Management would also determine if any adjustments are needed if the consolidated annual
provision for loan losses is less than total charge-offs. Management uses a precision level of 5% of the allowance for
loan losses compared to the aforementioned movement model, when determining if any adjustments are needed.
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The Company's policy is to charge off at the earlier of when such loans are deemed to be uncollectible or when six
months have elapsed since the date of the last full contractual payment. However, the Company's practice is to charge
off an account the earlier of when the account is deemed uncollectible or 120 days past due on a recency basis (at
March 31, 2013 approximately $3.6 million were 120 days or more past due). The Company's charge-off policy and
practice have been consistently applied and no changes have been made during the periods reported. The Company's
historical annual charge-off rate for the past 10 years has ranged from 13.3% to 16.7% of net loans. Management
considers the charge-off policy when evaluating the appropriateness of the allowance for loan losses.

To estimate the losses, the Company uses historical information for net charge-offs and average loan life. This
method is based on the fact that many customers refinance their loans prior to the contractual maturity. Average
contractual loan terms are approximately twelve months and the average loan life is approximately eight months. The
Company had an allowance for loan losses that approximated six months of average net charge-offs at March 31,
2013, 2012, and 2011. Therefore, at each year end the Company had an allowance for loan losses that covered
estimated losses for its existing loans based on historical charge-offs and average loan life.

A large percentage of loans that are charged off during any fiscal year are not on the Company's books at the
beginning of the fiscal year. The Company believes that it is not appropriate to provide for losses on loans that have
not been originated, that twelve months of net charge-offs are not needed in the allowance due to the average life of
the loan portfolio being less than twelve months, and that the method employed is in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles.

The following is a summary of the changes in the allowance for loan losses for the years ended March 31, 2013, 2012,
and 2011:

2013 2012 2011
Balance at beginning of period $54,507,299 48,354,994 42,896,819
Provision for loan losses 114,322,525 105,705,536 95,908,363
Loan losses (121,514,261 ) (110,373,643 ) (100,044,691 )
Recoveries 12,471,699 11,025,950 9,475,131
Translation adjustment 193,580 (205,538 ) 119,372
Balance at end of period $59,980,842 54,507,299 48,354,994

Allowance as a percentage of loans receivable, net of unearned
and deferred fees
Net charge-offs as a percentage of average loans receivable (V) 13.9 % 14.0 % 14.3 %

7.7 % 1.6 % 7.5 %

Average loans receivable have been determined by averaging month-end gross loans receivable less unearned
interest and deferred fees over the indicated period.

ey

Quarterly Information and Seasonality

The Company's loan volume and corresponding loans receivable follow seasonal trends. The Company's highest loan
demand typically occurs from October through December, its third fiscal quarter. Loan demand has generally been
the lowest and loan repayment highest from January to March, its fourth fiscal quarter. Loan volume and average
balances typically remain relatively level during the remainder of the year. This seasonal trend affects quarterly
operating performance through corresponding fluctuations in interest and fee income and insurance commissions
earned and the provision for loan losses recorded, as well as fluctuations in the Company's cash needs. Consequently,
operating results for the Company's third fiscal quarter generally are significantly lower than in other quarters and
operating results for its fourth fiscal quarter are significantly higher than in other quarters.
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The following table sets forth, on a quarterly basis, certain items included in the Company's unaudited Consolidated
Financial Statements and shows the number of offices open during fiscal years 2013 and 2012.

At or for the Three Months Ended

2013 2012
June September December March June September December March
30, 30, 31, 31, 30, 30, 31, 31,

(Dollars in thousands)
Total revenues  $132,836 139,398  149.640 161,844 123,156 132,139 135,946 148,921
fg:svelss“’“f"”oan 23.615 32,402 37.395 20911 22.839 30,057 36,109 16,700
General and
administrative 69,159 66.158 74,798 75.595 64513 61,464 66,234 68,474
expenses
Net income 22,615 22,901 20,674 37,900 20,182 23,304 19,582 37.626

Gross loans
receivable
Number of office
open

1,027,165 1,087,902 1,183,706 1,067,052 939,077 964,955 1,066,077 972,723

1,145 1,173 1,186 1,203 1,087 1,108 1,120 1,137

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

See Part II, Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data. Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies,” of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the impact of new accounting pronouncements.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Company has financed and continues to finance its operations, acquisitions and office expansion through a
combination of cash flows from operations and borrowings from its institutional lenders. The Company has generally
applied its cash flows from operations to fund its increasing loan volume, fund acquisitions, repay long-term
indebtedness, and repurchase its common stock. As the Company's gross loans receivable increased from

$671.2 million at March 31, 2009 to $1.1 billion at March 31, 2013, net cash provided by operating activities for fiscal
years 2013, 2012 and 2011 was $232.0 million, $219.4 million and $199.8 million, respectively.

The Company's primary ongoing cash requirements relate to the funding of new offices and acquisitions, the overall
growth of loans outstanding, the repayment of long-term indebtedness and the repurchase of its common stock. As of
March 31, 2013, approximately 14.5 million shares have been repurchased since 1996 for an aggregate purchase price
of approximately $543.3 million. During fiscal 2013 the Company repurchased 2.6 million shares for $183.0 million.
On February 27, 2013, the Board of Directors authorized the Company to repurchase up to $25.0 million of the
Company’s common stock. This repurchase authorization follows, and is in addition to, a similar repurchase
authorization of $75.0 million announced on November 19, 2012. After taking into account all shares repurchased
through June 14, 2013, the Company has $29.6 million in aggregate remaining repurchase capacity under all of the
company’s outstanding repurchase authorizations. See Note 18 — Subsequent Events to the Consolidated Financial
Statements. The Company believes stock repurchases to be a viable component of the Company’s long-term financial
strategy and an excellent use of excess cash when the opportunity arises. In addition, the Company plans to open
approximately 50 branches in the United States, 15 branches in Mexico, and evaluate acquisition opportunities in
fiscal 2014. Expenditures by the Company to open and furnish new offices generally averaged approximately
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$25,000 per office during fiscal 2013. New offices have also required from $100,000 to $400,000 to fund outstanding
loans receivable originated during their first 12 months of operation.

The Company acquired three offices and nine loan portfolios from competitors in seven states in twelve separate
transactions during fiscal 2013. Gross loans receivable purchased in these transactions were approximately $2.6
million in the aggregate at the dates of purchase. The Company believes that attractive opportunities to acquire new
offices or receivables from its competitors or to acquire offices in communities not currently served by the Company
will continue to become available as conditions in local economies and the financial circumstances of owners change.
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The Company has a $680.0 million base credit facility with a syndicate of banks. The credit facility will expire on
November 19, 2014. Funds borrowed under the revolving credit facility bear interest at the LIBOR rate plus 3.0% per
annum with a minimum 4.0% interest rate. During the twelve months ended, March 31, 2013, the effective interest
rate, including the commitment fee, on borrowings under the revolving credit facility was 4.6%. The Company pays
a commitment fee equal to 0.40% per annum of the daily unused portion of the commitments unless the unused
portion equals or exceeds 55% of the commitments, in which case the fee increases to 0.50% per annum. Amounts
outstanding under the revolving credit facility may not exceed specified percentages of eligible loans receivable. On
March 31, 2013, $400.3 million was outstanding under this facility, and there was $182.1 million of unused borrowing
availability under the borrowing base limitations. The Company also has $97.6 million that may become available
under the revolving credit facility if it grows the net eligible finance receivables.

The Company's revolving credit agreement contains a number of financial covenants, including minimum net worth
and fixed charge coverage requirements. The credit agreement also contains certain other covenants, including
covenants that impose limitations on the Company with respect to (i) declaring or paying dividends or making
distributions on or acquiring common or preferred stock or warrants or options; (ii) redeeming or purchasing or
prepaying principal or interest on subordinated debt; (iii) incurring additional indebtedness; and (iv) entering into a
merger, consolidation or sale of substantial assets or subsidiaries. The Company was in compliance with these
covenants at March 31, 2013 and does not believe that these covenants will materially limit its business and expansion
strategy.

The following table summarizes the Company’s contractual cash obligations by period (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Thereafter  Total
Maturities of notes $— $400250 $— §— $_ $— $400.250
payable
Interest payments 16,010 10,006 — — — — 26,016
Minimum lease 19,762 13,272 6,744 1,939 588 — 42,305
payments
Total $35,772 $423,528 $6,744 $1,939 $588 $— $468,571

The Company believes that cash flow from operations and borrowings under its revolving credit facility will be
adequate for the next twelve months, and for the foreseeable future thereafter, to fund the expected cost of opening or
acquiring new offices, including funding initial operating losses of new offices and funding loans receivable
originated by those offices and the Company's other offices. Except as otherwise discussed in this report, including in
Part 1, Item 1A, “Risk Factors,” management is not currently aware of any trends, demands, commitments, events or
uncertainties that it believes will or could result in, or are or could be reasonably likely to result in, the Company’s
liquidity increasing or decreasing in any material way. From time to time, the Company has needed and obtained, and
expects that it will continue to need on a recurring basis, an increase in the borrowing limits under its revolving credit
facility. The Company has successfully obtained such increases in the past and anticipates that it will be able to do so
in the future as the need arises; however, there can be no assurance that this additional funding will be available (or
available on reasonable terms) if and when needed. See Part I, Item 1A, “Risk Factors,” for a further discussion of risks
and contingencies that could affect our business, financial condition and liquidity.

Share Repurchase Program
The Company's long-term profitability has demonstrated over many years our ability to grow our loan portfolio (the
Company's only earning asset) and generate excess cash flow. We have and will continue to use our cash flow and

excess capital to repurchase shares, assuming that the repurchased shares are accretive to earnings per share, which
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should provide better returns for shareholders in the future. We prefer share repurchases to dividends for several
reasons. First, repurchasing shares should increase the value of the remaining shares. Second, repurchasing shares as
opposed to dividends provides shareholders the option to defer taxes by electing to not sell any of their holdings.
Finally, repurchasing shares provides shareholders with maximum flexibility to increase, maintain or decrease their
ownership depending on their view of the value of the Company's shares, whereas a dividend does not provide this
flexibility.

Since 1996, the Company has repurchased approximately 14.5 million shares for an aggregate purchase price of
approximately $543.3 million. As of March 31, 2013 our debt outstanding was $400.3 million and our shareholders'
equity was $366.4 million resulting in a debt-to-equity ratio of 1.1:1.0. Our first priority is to ensure we have enough
capital to fund loan growth. To the extent we have excess capital we intend to continue repurchasing stock, as
authorized by our Board of Directors, which is consistent with our past practice. We will continue to monitor on our
debt to equity ratio and are committed to maintaining a debt level that will allow us to continue to execute on our
business objectives, while not putting undue stress on our balance sheet.
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Historically, management has filed a Form 8-K with the Securities and Exchange Commission to announce any new
authorization the Board of Directors has given regarding stock repurchases. Management plans to continue to make
filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission or otherwise publicly announce future stock repurchase
authorizations. When we have Board authorization to repurchase shares, we have historically repurchased shares in
the open market and in accordance with applicable regulations regarding company repurchase programs and our own
self-imposed trading policies. As mentioned above, when we have excess capital and the market price of our stock is
trading at a level that is accretive to earnings per share, we anticipate that we will continue to repurchase shares.
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Interest Rate Risk

As of March 31, 2013, the Company’s financial instruments consisted of the following: cash and cash equivalents,
loans receivable, and senior notes payable. Fair value approximates carrying value for all of these instruments. Loans
receivable are originated at prevailing market rates and have an average life of approximately eight months. Given the
short-term nature of these loans, they are continually repriced at current market rates. The Company’s outstanding
debt under its revolving credit facility was $400.3 million at March 31, 2013. Interest on borrowings under this
facility is based, at the Company’s option, on the prime rate or LIBOR plus 3.0%, with a minimum rate of 4.0%.

Based on the outstanding balance at March 31, 2013, a change of 1% in the LIBOR interest rate would cause a change
in interest expense of approximately $0.8 million on an annual basis.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk

In September 2005 the Company began opening offices in Mexico, where its local businesses utilize the Mexican peso
as their functional currency. The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company are denominated in U.S. dollars
and are therefore subject to fluctuation as the U.S. dollar and Mexican peso foreign exchange rates change. Revenues
from our non-U.S. operations accounted for approximately 7.0% and 6.6% of total revenues during the twelve month
periods ended March 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. There have been, and there may continue to be,
period-to-period fluctuations in the relative portions of our international revenues to total consolidated revenues.

Our international operations are subject to risks, including but not limited to differing economic conditions, changes in
political climate, differing tax structures, other regulations and restrictions, and foreign exchange rate volatility when
compared to the United States. Accordingly, our future consolidated financial position as well as our consolidated
results of operations results could be adversely affected by changes in these or other factors. Foreign exchange rate
fluctuations may adversely impact our financial position as the assets and liabilities of our foreign operations are
translated into U.S. dollars in preparing our consolidated balance sheet. Our exposure to foreign exchange rate
fluctuations arises in part from balances in our intercompany accounts included on our subsidiary balance sheets.
These intercompany accounts are denominated in the functional currency of the foreign subsidiaries and are translated
to U.S. dollars at each reporting period end. Additionally, foreign exchange rate fluctuations may impact our
consolidated results from operations as exchange rate fluctuations will impact the amounts reported in our
consolidated statement of income. The effect of foreign exchange rate fluctuations on our consolidated financial
position is recognized within shareholders’ equity through accumulated other comprehensive income (loss). The net
translation adjustment for the twelve months ended March 31, 2013 was a gain of approximately $2.3 million. The
Company’s foreign currency exchange rate exposures may change over time as business practices evolve and could
have a material effect on the Company’s financial results. The Company will continue to monitor and assess the effect
of foreign currency fluctuations and may institute hedging strategies.

The Company performs a foreign exchange sensitivity analysis on a quarterly basis which assumes a hypothetical
10% increase and decrease in the value of the U.S. dollar relative to the Mexican peso. The foreign exchange risk
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sensitivity of both net loans receivable and consolidated net income is assessed using hypothetical scenarios and
assumes that earnings in Mexican pesos are recognized evenly throughout a period. The actual results may differ from
the results noted in the tables below particularly due to assumptions utilized or if events occur that were not included
in the method used.
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The foreign exchange risk sensitivity of net loans denominated in Mexican pesos and translated into U.S. dollars,
which were approximately $50.8 million and $37.5 million at March 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, on the reported
net loans receivable amount is summarized in the following table:

Foreign Exchange Sensitivity Analysis of Loans Receivable, Net of Unearned Amounts
As of March 31, 2013
Foreign exchange spot rate, US Dollars to Mexican

Pesos (10 )% 0 % 10 %
Loans receivable, net of unearned $777,475,815 $782,095,568 $787,741,943

% change from base amount (0.59 )% — 0.72 %
$ change from base amount $(4,619,753 ) $— $5,646,375

As of March 31, 2012

gggzlsgn exchange spot rate, US Dollars to Mexican (10 Y% 0 % 10 %
Loans receivable, net of unearned $711,680,007 $715,084,945 $719,246,561

% change from base amount (0.48 )% — 0.58 %
$ change from base amount $(3,404,938 ) $— $4,161,616

The following table summarizes the results of the foreign exchange risk sensitivity analysis on reported net income as
of the dates indicated below:

Foreign Exchange Sensitivity Analysis of Net Income
As of March 31, 2013
Foreign exchange spot rate, US Dollars to Mexican

(10 )% 0 % 10 %
Pesos
Net Income $103,782,597 $104,089,748 $104,465,158
% change from base amount (0.30 Y% — 0.36 %
$ change from base amount $(307,151 ) $— $375,410

As of March 31, 2012
gggzlsgn exchange spot rate, US Dollars to Mexican (10 Y% 0 % 10 %
Net Income $100,419,795 $100,694,443 $101,030,127
% change from base amount (0.27 Y% — 0.33 %
$ change from base amount $(274,648 ) $— $335,684
Inflation

The Company does not believe that inflation, within reasonably anticipated rates, will have a material adverse effect
on its financial condition. Although inflation would increase the Company’s operating costs in absolute terms, the
Company expects that the same decrease in the value of money would result in an increase in the size of loans
demanded by its customer base. It is reasonable to anticipate that such a change in customer preference would result
in an increase in total loan receivables and an increase in absolute revenues to be generated from that larger amount of
loans receivable. The Company believes that this increase in absolute revenues should offset any increase in
operating costs. In addition, because the Company’s loans have a relatively short contractual term and average life, it
is unlikely that loans made at any given point in time will be repaid with significantly inflated dollars.

Legal Matters
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From time to time the Company is involved in routine litigation relating to claims arising out of its operations in the
normal course of business. See Part I, Item 3, “Legal Proceedings” and Note 17 to our audited Consolidated Financial
Statements for further discussion of legal matters.

Item 7A.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Quantitative and Qualitative

Disclosures about Market Risk” of this report is incorporated by reference in response to this Item 7A.
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Part IT
Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Gross loans receivable
Less:

Unearned interest and fees
Allowance for loan losses
Loans receivable, net
Property and equipment, net
Deferred income taxes
Other assets, net
Goodwill

Intangible assets, net
Total assets

LIABILITIES & SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Liabilities:

Senior notes payable

Junior subordinated note payable
Income taxes payable

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Total liabilities

Shareholders' equity:

Preferred stock, no par value Authorized 5,000,000, no shares issued or outstanding
Common stock, no par value Authorized 95,000,000 shares; issued and outstanding

12,171,075 and 13,898,265 shares at March 31, 2013 and March 31, 2012,
respectively

Additional paid-in capital

Retained earnings

Accumulated other comprehensive (loss)/income

Total shareholders' equity

Commitments and contingencies

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity
See accompanying notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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March 31,
2013

$11,625,365
1,067,051,763

(284,956,195 )
(59,980,842 )
722,114,726
23,935,439
29,415,996
11,712,319
5,896,288
4,624,832
$809,324,965

400,250,000
13,941,632
28,737,074
442,928,706

89,789,789
277,024,787
(418,317 )
366,396,259

$809,324,965

2012

10,768,176
972,722,764

(257,637,819 )
(54,507,299 )
660,577,646
23,485,435
18,473,998
10,527,420
5,690,934
5,479,490
735,003,099

229,250,000
50,000,000
11,528,236
25,349,850
316,128,086

65,630,753
355,980,694
(2,736,434 )
418,875,013

735,003,099
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Revenues:

Interest and fee income

Insurance commissions and other income
Total revenues

Expenses:

Provision for loan losses

General and administrative expenses:
Personnel

Occupancy and equipment

Advertising

Amortization of intangible assets

Other

Total general and administrative expenses

Interest expense
Total expenses

Income before income taxes
Income taxes
Net income

Net income per common share:
Basic
Diluted

Weighted average common shares outstanding:

Basic
Diluted

See accompanying notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Years Ended March 31,

2013 2012
$505,495,331 466,481,109
78,222,382 73,680,573
583,717,713 540,161,682
114,322,525 105,705,536
194,422,717 175,402,913
36,278,134 33,864,579
14,849,980 14,228,002
1,365,473 1,698,241
38,794,090 35,490,422
285,710,394 260,684,157
17,393,963 13,898,648
417,426,882 380,288,341
166,290,831 159,873,341
62,201,083 59,178,898
$104,089,748 100,694,443
$8.04 6.75

$7.88 6.59
12,940,007 14,906,662
13,214,271 15,289,111

2011

424,594,245
66,850,858
491,445,103

95,908,363

159,160,492
31,115,076
13,056,444
1,949,444
32,233,478
237,514,934

14,772,694
348,195,991

143,249,112
51,999,932
91,249,180

5.76
5.63

15,833,983
16,210,233
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended March 31,

2013 2012
Net income $104,089,748 100,694,443
Foreign currency translation adjustments 2,318,117 (2,872,633
Comprehensive income $106,407,865 97,821,810

See accompanying notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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2011

91,249,180
) 1,480,635

92,729,815
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Balances at March 31, 2010

Proceeds from exercise of stock options
(447,250 shares), including tax benefits of
$1,923,628

Common stock repurchases (1,298,057
shares)

Issuance of restricted common stock under
stock option plan (54,951 shares)

Stock option expense

Repurchase and cancellation of convertible
notes

Other comprehensive income

Net income

Balances at March 31, 2011

Proceeds from exercise of stock options
(324,140 shares), including tax benefits of
$2,072,030

Common stock repurchases (2,181,045
shares)

Issuance of restricted common stock under
stock option plan (60,416 shares)

Stock option expense

Other comprehensive income

Net income

Balances at March 31, 2012

Proceeds from exercise of stock options
(332,665 shares), including tax benefits of
$3,049,108

Common stock repurchases (2,569,597
shares)

Issuance of restricted common stock under
stock option plan (524,500 shares)

Stock option expense

Other comprehensive income

Net income

Balances at March 31, 2013

Additional Paid-

in Capital

$27,112,822

13,806,260

1,485,359
3,855,348
1,092,949

$47,352,738

11,660,188

1,750,596
4,867,231

$65,630,753

12,993,709

3,842,674
7,322,653

$89,789,789

Retained
Earnings

357,179,568

(53,342,516

91,249,180

395,086,232

(139,799,981

100,694,443

355,980,694

(183,045,655

104,089,748

277,024,787

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive

Income (Loss),
net
(1,344,436

1,480,635

136,199

(2,872,633

(2,736,434

2,318,117

(418,317

Total
Shareholders'

Equity

382,947,954

13,806,260

(53,342,516

1,485,359
3,855,348
1,092,949
1,480,635
91,249,180

442,575,169

11,660,188

(139,799,981

1,750,596

4,867,231
(2,872,633
100,694,443

418,875,013

12,993,709

(183,045,655

3,842,674

7,322,653
2,318,117
104,089,748

) 366,396,259
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See accompanying notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flow from operating activities:
Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating
activities:

Amortization of intangible assets

Amortization of loan costs and discounts

Provision for loan losses

Amortization of convertible note discount

Depreciation

Deferred income tax benefit

Compensation related to stock option and restricted stock plans
Unrealized gains on interest rate swap

Change in accounts:

Other assets, net

Income taxes payable

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Increase in loans receivable, net

Net assets acquired from office acquisitions, primarily loans
Increase in intangible assets from acquisitions

Purchases of property and equipment, net

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flow from financing activities:

Borrowings from lines of credit

Payments on lines of credit

Repayment of convertible senior subordinated notes
(Payments on)/proceeds from junior subordinated note payable
Loan cost associated with junior subordinated note payable
Loan cost associated with revolving line of credit

Proceeds from sale of the call option and warrants associated with the
convertible notes

Proceeds from exercise of stock options

Repurchase of common stock

Excess tax benefit from exercise of stock options

Net cash used in financing activities

(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents

Years Ended March 31,

2013

$104,089,748

1,365,473
612,021
114,322,525
6,442,292
(10,941,998 )
11,165,327

(811,921 )
2,413,396
3,387,226

232,044,089

(171,985,755 )
(1,951,646 )
(716,169 )
(6,884,296 )

(181,537,866 )

443,515,466
(272,515,466 )

(50,000,000 )

(985,000 )
9,944,601
(183,045,655 )
3,049,108

(50,036,946 )

469,277

2012

100,694,443

1,698,241
311,624
105,705,536
1,819,600
6,493,817
(3,993,974 )
6,617,827
(319,235 )
(490,705 )
(1,575,266 )
2,439,394
219,401,302
(167,224,562)
(3,383,421 )
(869,189 )
(6,855,688 )

(178,332,860)

405,020,000
(258,020,000)
(77,000,000 )
20,000,000

9,588,160
(139,799,981)
2,072,030
(38,139,791 )

2,928,651

2011

91,249,180

1,949,444
441,895
95,908,363
3,688,359
6,172,747
(2,837,480 )
5,340,707
(1,017,032 )

1,017,199
(947,074 )
(1,130,438 )

199,835,870

(161,275,485)
(2,977,729 )
(746,666 )
(6,394,287 )

(171,394,167)

293,895,000
(310,795,000)

30,000,000
(629,048 )

1,092,949

11,882,632
(53,342,516 )
1,923,628
(25,972,355 )

2,469,348
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Effects of foreign currency fluctuations on cash

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

See accompanying notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

37

387,912
10,768,176

$11,625,365

(191,055
8,030,580

10,768,176

) 116,064
5,445,168

8,030,580
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(1)Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The Company's accounting and reporting policies are in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles and conform to general practices within the finance company industry. The following is a description of the
more significant of these policies used in preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Nature of Operations

The Company is a small-loan consumer finance company headquartered in Greenville, South Carolina, that offers
short-term small loans, medium-term larger loans, related credit insurance products and ancillary products and
services to individuals who have limited access to other sources of consumer credit. It also offers income tax return
preparation services to its customer base and to others.

The Company also markets computer software and related services to financial services companies through its
ParaData Financial Systems (“ParaData”) subsidiary.

As of March 31, 2013, the Company operated 1,084 offices in South Carolina, Georgia, Texas, Oklahoma, Louisiana,
Tennessee, Missouri, Illinois, New Mexico, Kentucky, Alabama, Wisconsin, and Indiana. The Company also
operated 119 offices in Mexico. The Company is subject to numerous lending regulations that vary by jurisdiction.

Principles of Consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of World Acceptance Corporation and its wholly owned
subsidiaries (the “Company”). Subsidiaries consist of operating entities in various states and Mexico, ParaData (a
software company acquired during fiscal 1994), WAC Insurance Company, Ltd. (a captive reinsurance company
established in fiscal 1994) and Servicios World Acceptance Corporation de Mexico (a service company established in
fiscal 2006). All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

The financial statements of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries in Mexico are prepared using the local currency as the
functional currency. Assets and liabilities of these subsidiaries are translated into U.S. dollars at the current exchange
rate while income and expense are translated at an average exchange rate for the period. The resulting translation
gains and losses are recognized as a component of equity in “Accumulated other comprehensive (loss)/income.”

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. The most
significant item subject to such estimates and assumptions that could materially change in the near term is the
allowance for loan losses. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Reclassification

Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current presentation. Such reclassifications had
no impact on previously reported net income or shareholders’ equity. During the current year the Company reclassed
net borrowings and payments from lines of credit to show the gross borrowings and the gross payments from lines of

credit on the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. The reclass did not impact the Consolidated Statements of
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Operations nor the Consolidated Statements of Shareholders Equity.
Business Segments

The Company reports operating segments in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB")
Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") Topic 280. Operating segments are components of an enterprise about
which separate financial information is available that is evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision maker in
deciding how to allocate resources and assess performance. FASB ASC Topic 280 requires that a public enterprise
report a measure of segment profit or loss, certain specific revenue and expense items, segment assets, information
about the way that the operating segments were determined and other items.
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The Company has one reportable segment, which is the consumer finance company. The other revenue generating
activities of the Company, including the sale of insurance products, income tax preparation, buying club and the
automobile club, are done in the existing branch network in conjunction with or as a complement to the lending
operation. There is no discrete financial information available for these activities and they do not meet the criteria
under FASB ASC Topic 280 to be reported separately.

ParaData provides data processing systems to 105 separate finance companies, including the Company. At March 31,
2013 and 2012, ParaData had total assets of $0.9 million and $1.0 million, which represented less than 1% of total
consolidated assets at each fiscal year end. Total net revenues (system sales and support) for ParaData for the years
ended March 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 were $2.1 million, $2.3 million and $1.9 million, respectively, which
represented less than 1% of consolidated revenue for each year. Although ParaData is an operating segment under
FASB ASC Topic 280, it does not meet the criteria to require separate disclosure.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Company considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of
three months or less from the date of original issuance to be cash equivalents.

Loans and Interest Income

The Company is licensed to originate consumer loans in the states of Georgia, South Carolina, Texas, Oklahoma,
Louisiana, Tennessee, Missouri, Illinois, New Mexico, Kentucky, Alabama, Wisconsin, and Indiana. In addition, the
Company also originates consumer loans in Mexico. During fiscal 2013 and 2012, the Company originated loans
generally ranging up to $4,000, with terms of 44 months or less. Experience indicates that a majority of the consumer
loans are refinanced, and the Company accounts for the refinancing as a new loan. Generally a customer must make
multiple payments in order to qualify for refinancing. Furthermore, the Company's lending policy has predetermined
lending amounts, so that in most cases a refinancing will result in advancing additional funds. The Company believes
that the advancement of additional funds constitutes more than a minor modification to the terms of the existing loan
if the present value of the cash flows under the terms of the new loan will be 10% or more of the present value of the
remaining cash flows under the terms of the original loan.

Fees received and direct costs incurred for the origination of loans are deferred and amortized to interest income over
the contractual lives of the loans. Unamortized amounts are recognized in income at the time that loans are refinanced
or paid in full.

Loans are carried at the gross amount outstanding, reduced by unearned interest and insurance income, net of deferred
origination fees and direct costs, and an allowance for loan losses. For the fiscal years ended March 31, 2012 and
2011, the Company recognized interest revenue on its loans using the rule of 78s, and the collection method, which is
a cash method of recognizing the revenue. The combination of using the rule of 78s and the cash collections method
to recognize interest revenue approximated the actuarial accrual method required by U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles. As of March 31, 2013, the Company converted to the actuarial accrual method for recognizing
the revenue.

Charges for late payments are credited to income when collected.

The Company generally offers its loans at the prevailing statutory rates for terms not to exceed 44
months. Management believes that the carrying value approximates the fair value of its loan portfolio.
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Nonaccrual Policy
The accrual of interest is discontinued when a loan is 60 days past the contractual due date. When the interest accrual

is discontinued, all unpaid accrued interest is reversed against interest income. While a loan is on nonaccrual status, no
interest revenue is recognized.
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Allowance for Loan Losses

The Company maintains an allowance for loan losses in an amount that, in management's opinion, is adequate to
provide for losses inherent in the existing loan portfolio. The Company charges against current earnings, as a
provision for loan losses, amounts added to the allowance to maintain it at levels expected to cover probable losses of
principal. When establishing the allowance for loan losses, the Company takes into consideration the growth of the
loan portfolio, current levels of charge-offs, current levels of delinquencies, and current economic factors.

The Company uses a mathematical calculation to determine the initial allowance at the end of each reporting period.
The calculation originated as management's estimate of future charge-offs and is used to allocate expenses to the
branch level. There are two components when calculating the allowance for loan losses, which the Company refers to
as the general reserve and the specific reserve. This calculation is a starting point and over time, and as needed,
additional provisions have been added as determined by management to make the allowance adequate.

The general reserve is 4.25% of the gross loan portfolio. The specific reserve represents 100% of all loans 91 or more
days past due on a recency basis, including bankrupt accounts in that category. This methodology is based on
historical data showing that the collection of loans 91 days or more past due and bankrupt accounts is remote.

A process is then performed to determine the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses, as well as considering trends
in current levels of delinquencies, charge-off levels, and economic trends (such as energy and food prices). The
primary tool used is the movement model (on a contractual and recency basis) which considers the rolling twelve
months of delinquency to determine expected charge-offs. The sum of expected charge-offs, determined from the
movement model (on a contractual and recency basis) plus the amount of delinquent renewals are compared to the
allowance resulting from the mathematical calculation to determine if any adjustments are needed to make the
allowance adequate. Management would also determine if any adjustments are needed if the consolidated annual
provision for loan losses is less than total charge-offs. Management uses a precision level of 5% of the allowance for
loan losses compared to the aforementioned movement model, when determining if any adjustments are needed.

The Company's policy is to charge off at the earlier of when such loans are deemed to be uncollectible or when six
months have elapsed since the date of the last full contractual payment. However, the Company's practice is to charge
off an account the earlier of when the account is deemed uncollectible or 120 days past due on a recency basis. The
Company's charge-off policy and practice have been consistently applied and no changes have been made during the
periods reported. The Company's historical annual charge-off rate for the past 10 years has ranged from 13.3% to
16.7% of net loans. Management considers the charge-off policy when evaluating the appropriateness of the
allowance for loan losses.

FASB ASC Topic 310 prohibits carryover or creation of valuation allowances in the initial accounting of all loans
acquired in a transfer that are within the scope of this authoritative literature. The Company believes that loans
acquired since the adoption of FASB ASC Topic 310 have not shown evidence of deterioration of credit quality since
origination, and therefore, are not within the scope of FASB ASC Topic 310. Therefore, the Company records
acquired loans (not within the scope of FASB ASC Topic 310) at fair value.

Impaired Loans

The Company defines impaired loans as bankrupt accounts and accounts 90 days or more past due. In accordance
with the Company’s charge-off policy, once a loan is deemed uncollectible, 100% of the net investment is charged-off,
except in the case of a borrower who has filed for bankruptcy. As of March 31, 2013, bankrupt accounts that had not
been charged-off were approximately $5.9 million. Bankrupt accounts 91 days or more past due are reserved

100%. The Company also considers accounts 91 days or more past due as impaired and the accounts are reserved
100%.

Additional requirements from ASU 2010-20 about the credit quality of the Company’s receivables are disclosed in
Note 2.
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Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation is recorded
using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the related asset as follows: building, 40 years;
furniture and fixtures, 5 to 10 years; equipment, 3 to 7 years; and vehicles, 3 years. Amortization of leasehold
improvements is recorded using the straight-line method over the lesser of the estimated useful life of the asset or the
term of the lease. Additions to premises and equipment and major replacements or improvements are added at

cost. Maintenance, repairs, and minor replacements are charged to operating expense as incurred. When assets are
retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and any gain or
loss is reflected in the consolidated statement of operations.

Operating Leases

The Company’s office leases typically have a lease term of three to five years and contain lessee renewal options and
cancellation clauses in the event of regulatory changes. The Company typically renews its leases for one or more
option periods. Accordingly, the Company amortizes its leasehold improvements over the shorter of their economic
lives, which are generally five years, or the lease term that considers renewal periods that are reasonably assured.

Other Assets

Other assets include cash surrender value of life insurance policies, prepaid expenses, debt issuance costs and other
deposits.

Derivatives and Hedging Activities

The Company has used interest rate swaps and foreign currency options to economically hedge the variable cash flows
and currency fluctuations, respectively. Interest rate swap agreements were carried at fair value. Changes to fair
value were recorded each period as a component of the consolidated statement of operations. See Note 7 for further
discussion related to the interest rate swaps. As of March 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company did not have any foreign
currency options outstanding. As of March 31, 2013, the Company did not have any interest rate swaps outstanding.

Intangible Assets and Goodwill

Intangible assets include the cost of acquiring existing customers, and the fair value assigned to non-compete
agreements. Customer lists are amortized on a straight line or accelerated basis over their estimated period of benefit,
ranging from 5 to 20 years with a weighted average of approximately 11 years. Non-compete agreements are
amortized on a straight line basis over the term of the agreement.

The Company evaluates goodwill annually for impairment in the fourth quarter of the fiscal year using the market
value-based approach. The Company has one reporting unit, the consumer finance company, and the Company has
multiple components, the lowest level of which is individual offices. The Company’s components are aggregated for
impairment testing because they have similar economic characteristics. The Company writes off goodwill when it
closes an office that has goodwill assigned to it. As of March 31, 2013, the Company had 89 offices with recorded
goodwill.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company assesses impairment of long-lived assets, including property and equipment and intangible assets,
whenever changes or events indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. The Company assesses

78



Edgar Filing: WORLD ACCEPTANCE CORP - Form 10-K/A

impairment of these assets generally at the office level based on the operating cash flows of the office and the
Company’s plans for office closings. The Company will write down such assets to fair value if, based on an analysis,
the sum of the expected future undiscounted cash flows is less than the carrying amount of the assets. The Company
recorded an immaterial impairment charge of approximately $25,000 for the fiscal year ended 2011 and did not record
any impairment charges for the fiscal year ended 2013 or 2012.
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments

FASB ASC Topic 825 requires disclosures about the fair value of all financial instruments, whether or not recognized
in the balance sheet, for which it is practicable to estimate that value. In cases where quoted market prices are not
available, fair values are based on estimates using present value or other valuation techniques. The Company’s
financial instruments for the periods reported consist of the following: cash and cash equivalents, loans receivable,
senior notes payable and junior subordinated notes payable. Fair value approximates carrying value for all of these
instruments. Loans receivable are originated at prevailing market rates and have an average life of approximately eight
months. Given the short-term nature of these loans, they are continually repriced at current market rates. The
Company’s revolving credit facility and junior subordinated note payable have a variable rate based on a margin over
LIBOR and reprice with any changes in LIBOR.

Insurance Premiums

Insurance premiums for credit life, accident and health, property and unemployment insurance written in connection
with certain loans, net of refunds and applicable advance insurance commissions retained by the Company, are
remitted monthly to an insurance company. All commissions are credited to unearned insurance commissions and
recognized as income over the life of the related insurance contracts using a method similar to that used for the
recognition of interest and fee income.

Non-filing Insurance

Non-filing insurance premiums are charged on certain loans in lieu of recording and perfecting the Company's
security interest in the assets pledged. The premiums and recoveries are remitted to a third party insurance company
and are not reflected in the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements (See Note 9). Claims paid by the third
party insurance company result in a reduction to loan losses.

Certain losses related to such loans, which are not recoverable through life, accident and health, property, or
unemployment insurance claims are reimbursed through non-filing insurance claims subject to policy
limitations. Any remaining losses are charged to the allowance for loan losses.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized
for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of
existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in
which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and
liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date.

The Company recognizes the effect of income tax positions only if those positions are more likely than not of being
sustained. Recognized income tax positions are measured at the largest amount that is greater than 50% likely of

being realized. Changes in recognition or measurement are reflected in the period in which the change in judgment
occurs.

Supplemental Cash Flow Information

For the years ended March 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011, the Company paid interest of $16,028,399, $11,076,970 and
$9,840,627, respectively.
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For the years ended March 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011, the Company paid income taxes of $66,921,031, $60,760,661
and $50,487,423, respectively.
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Earnings Per Share

Earnings per share (“EPS”) are computed in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 260. Basic EPS includes no dilution
and is computed by dividing net income by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding for the
period. Diluted EPS reflects the potential dilution of securities that could share in the earnings of the

Company. Potential common stock included in the diluted EPS computation consists of stock options, restricted stock
and warrants, which are computed using the treasury stock method. Potential common stock related to the Company's
formerly outstanding convertible senior notes are included in the diluted EPS computation using the method
prescribed by FASB ASC Topic 260-10-45. See Note 12 for the reconciliation of the numerators and denominators
for basic and dilutive EPS calculations.

Stock-Based Compensation

FASB ASC Topic 718-10 requires companies to recognize in the income statement the grant-date fair value of stock
options and other equity-based compensation issued to employees. FASB ASC Topic 718-10 does not change the
accounting guidance for share-based payment transactions with parties other than employees provided in FASB ASC
Topic 718-10. Under FASB ASC Topic 718-10, the way an award is classified will affect the measurement of
compensation cost. Liability-classified awards are remeasured to fair value at each balance-sheet date until the award
is settled. Equity-classified awards are measured at grant-date fair value, amortized over the subsequent vesting
period, and are not subsequently remeasured. The fair value of non-vested stock awards for the purposes of
recognizing stock-based compensation expense is the market price of the stock on the grant date. The fair value of
options is estimated on the grant date using the Black-Scholes option pricing model (see Note 13).

At March 31, 2013, the Company had several share-based employee compensation plans, which are described more
fully in Note 13. The Company uses the modified prospective transition method in accordance with FASB ASC
Topic 718. Under this method of transition, compensation cost recognized during fiscal years 2011, 2012, and 2013
was based on the grant-date fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of FASB ASC Topic 718. Since
this compensation cost is based on awards ultimately expected to vest, it has been reduced for estimated forfeitures.
FASB ASC Topic 718 requires forfeitures to be estimated at the time of grant and revised, if necessary, in subsequent
periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates. The Company has elected to expense grants of awards with
graded vesting on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period for each separately vesting portion of the
award.

Comprehensive Income

Total comprehensive income consists of net income and other comprehensive income (loss). The Company’s other
comprehensive income (loss) and accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) are comprised of foreign currency
translation adjustments.

Concentration of Risk

During the year ended March 31, 2013, the Company operated in 13 states in the United States as well as in Mexico.
For the years ended March 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, total revenues within the Company's four largest states
(measured by total revenues) accounted for approximately 56%, 56% and 57%, respectively, of the Company's total

revenues.

Advertising Costs
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Advertising costs are expensed when incurred. Advertising costs were approximately $14.8 million, $14.2 million
and $13.1 million for fiscal years 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
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New Accounting Pronouncements Adopted
Fair Value Measurement

In May 2011, the FASB issued an accounting pronouncement (ASU 2011-04) related to fair value measurement
(FASB ASC Topic 820), which amends current guidance to achieve common fair value measurement and disclosure
requirements in GAAP and International Financial Reporting Standards. The amendments generally represent
clarification of FASB ASC Topic 820, but also include instances where a particular principle or requirement for
measuring fair value or disclosing information about fair value measurements has changed. This pronouncement is
effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2011. The Company
adopted this pronouncement for our fiscal year beginning April 1, 2012. The adoption did not have a material effect
on our Consolidated Financial Statements.

Comprehensive Income

ASU 2011-05, “Comprehensive Income (Topic 220) — Presentation of Comprehensive Income” (“ASU 2011-05") amends
Topic 220, “Comprehensive Income,” to require that all non-owner changes in stockholders’ equity be presented in either
a single continuous statement of comprehensive income or in two separate but consecutive statements. Additionally,
ASU 2011-05 requires entities to present, on the face of the financial statements, reclassification adjustments for items
that are reclassified from other comprehensive income to net income in the statement or statements where the
components of net income and the components of other comprehensive income are presented. The option to present
components of other comprehensive income as part of the statement of changes in stockholders’ equity was eliminated.
ASU 2011-05 is effective for annual and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2011; however certain

provisions related to the presentation of reclassification adjustments have been deferred by ASU 2011-12
“Comprehensive Income (Topic 820) — Deferral of the Effective Date for Amendments to the Presentation of
Reclassifications of Items Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income in Accounting Standards Update No.
2011-05.” ASU 2011-05 is not expected to have a significant impact on our financial statements. The Company

adopted this pronouncement for our annual and interim reporting beginning April 1, 2012.

Testing Goodwill for Impairment

ASU 2011-08, “Testing Goodwill for Impairment,” permits an entity to make a qualitative assessment of whether it is
more likely than not that a reporting unit’s fair value is less than its carrying amount before applying the two-step
goodwill impairment test. If an entity concludes it is not more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is
less than its carrying amount, it need not perform the two-step impairment test. The ASU is effective for annual and
interim goodwill impairment tests performed for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2011, with early adoption
permitted. The adoption did not have any impact on the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements. The
Company adopted this pronouncement for our fiscal year beginning April 1, 2012.

Accounting Standards to be Adopted

We reviewed significant newly issued accounting pronouncements and concluded that they are either not applicable to
our business or that no material effect is expected on the financial statements as a result of future adoption.
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(2) Allowance for Loan Losses and Credit Quality Indicators

The following is a summary of the changes in the allowance for loan losses for the years ended March 31, 2013, 2012,

and 2011:

Balance at beginning of period
Provision for loan losses

Loan losses

Recoveries

Translation adjustment
Balance at end of period

2013 2012 2011
$54,507,299 48,354,994 42,896,819
114,322,525 105,705,536 95,908,363
(121,514,261 ) (110,373,643 ) (100,044,691 )
12,471,699 11,025,950 9,475,131
193,580 (205,538 ) 119,372
$59,980,842 54,507,299 48,354,994

The following is a summary of loans individually and collectively evaluated for impairment for the period indicated:

March 31, 2013

Bankruptcy, gross loans

91 days or more delinquent, excluding bankruptcy

Loans less than 91 days delinquent and not in bankruptcy
Gross loan balance

Unearned interest and fees

Net loans

Allowance for loan losses

Loans, net of allowance for loan losses

March 31, 2012

Bankruptcy, gross loans

91 days or more delinquent, excluding bankruptcy

Loans less than 91 days delinquent and not in bankruptcy
Gross loan balance

Unearned interest and fees

Net loans

Allowance for loan losses

Loans, net of allowance for loan losses

45

Loans individually

evaluated for Loans collectively

) . evaluated for Total
“.npalfmem impairment

(impaired loans)

$5,910,206 — 5,910,206
23,536,170 — 23,536,170

— 1,037,605,387 1,037,605,387
29,446,376 1,037,605,387 1,067,051,763
(6,036,018 ) (278,920,177 ) (284,956,195 )
23,410,358 758,685,210 782,095,568
(23,410,358 ) (36,570,484 ) (59,980,842 )
$— 722,114,726 722,114,726
Loans individually Loans collectively

evaluated for

. : evaluated for Total

imp alfment impairment

(impaired loans)

$5,646,956 — 5,646,956
20,882,907 — 20,882,907

— 946,192,901 946,192,901
26,529,863 946,192,901 972,722,764
(7,085,222 ) (250,552,597 ) (257,637,819 )
19,444,641 695,640,304 715,084,945
(19,444,641 ) (35,062,658 ) (54,507,299 )
$— 660,577,646 660,577,646
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March 31, 2011

Bankruptcy, gross loans

91 days or more delinquent, excluding bankruptcy

Loans less than 91 days delinquent and not in bankruptcy
Gross loan balance

Unearned interest and fees

Net loans

Allowance for loan losses

Loans, net of allowance for loan losses

The following is an assessment of the credit quality for the period indicated:

Credit risk

Consumer loans- non-bankrupt accounts
Consumer loans- bankrupt accounts
Total gross loans

Consumer credit exposure

Credit risk profile based on payment activity, performing
Contractual non-performing, 61 or more days delinquent
Total gross loans

Delinquent renewals

Credit risk profile based on customer type
New borrower

Former borrower

Refinance

Delinquent refinance

Total gross loans

Loans individually

evaluated for
impairment

(impaired loans)

$4,810,026
16,236,862
21,046,888
(3,649,341
17,397,547
(16,829,496
$568,051

The following is a summary of the past due receivables as of:

Contractual basis:

30-60 days past due
61-90 days past due

91 days or more past due
Total

Percentage of period-end gross loans receivable

46

March 31,
2013

$37,674,267
22,773,063
23,941,210
$84,388,540

7.9

Loans collectively

evaluated for Total
impairment
— 4,810,026
— 16,236,862
853,998,792 853,998,792
853,998,792 875,045,680
) (225,324,791 ) (228,974,132 )
628,674,001 646,071,548
) (31,525,498 ) (48,354,994 )
597,148,503 597,716,554
March 31, March 31,
2013 2012
$1,061,141,557 967,075,808
5,910,206 5,646,956
$1,067,051,763 972,722,764
$1,020,337,490 934,095,598
46,714,273 38,627,166
$1,067,051,763 972,722,764
$19,799,064 21,013,742
$130,897,466 110,362,853
90,281,773 79,712,646
826,073,460 761,633,523
19,799,064 21,013,742
$1,067,051,763 972,722,764
March 31, March 31,
2012 2011
24,853,508 23,705,287
17,320,264 16,564,121
21,306,902 16,625,070
63,480,674 56,894,478
% 6.5 % 6.5 %
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(3)Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consist of:

March 31, March 31,
2013 2012
Land $250,443 250,443
Building and leasehold improvements 17,380,828 15,907,910
Furniture and equipment 38,643,075 35,362,686
56,274,346 51,521,039
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (32,338,907 ) (28,035,604 )
Total $23,935,439 23,485,435

Depreciation expense was approximately $6.4 million, $6.5 million and $6.2 million for the years ended March 31,
2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

(4)Intangible Assets

The following table provides the gross carrying amount and related accumulated amortization of definite-lived
intangible assets:

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

Gross Carrying Accumulated  Gross Carrying Accumulated

Amount Amortization Amount Amortization
Cost of acquiring existing customers $22.079,607 (17,650,898 ) $21,628,792 (16,366,708 )
Value assigned to non-compete agreements 8,289,643 (8,093,520 ) 8,229,643 (8,012,237 )
Total $30,369,250 (25,744,418 ) $29,858,435 (24,378,945 )

The estimated amortization expense for intangible assets for future years ended March 31 is as follows: $1.0 million
for 2014; $0.7 million for 2015; $0.5 million for 2016; $0.4 million for 2017; $0.3 million for 2018; and an aggregate
of $1.7 million for the years thereafter.

(5) Goodwill

The following summarizes the changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the year ended March 31, 2013 and
2012:

2013 2012
Balance at beginning of year
Goodwill $5,716,327 5,659,979
Accumulated goodwill impairment losses (25,393 ) (25,393 )

$5,690,934 5,634,586
Goodwill acquired during the year $205,354 56,348
Impairment losses — —

Balance at end of year

Goodwill $5,921,681 5,716,327
Accumulated goodwill impairment losses (25,393 ) (25,393 )
Total $5,896,288 5,690,934
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The Company performed an annual impairment test during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2013 and 2012, and determined
that none of the recorded goodwill was impaired.
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(6)Notes Payable
Senior Notes Payable $680,000,000 Revolving Credit Facility

This facility provides for borrowings of up to $680.0 million with $400.3 million outstanding at March 31, 2013.
Subject to a borrowing base formula, the Company may borrow at the rate of LIBOR plus 3.0% with a minimum of
4.0%. At March 31, 2013 and March 31, 2012, the Company’s effective interest rate, including the commitment fee,
was 4.6% and 5.4%, respectively, and the unused amount available under the revolver at March 31, 2013 was $182.1
million. The Company also had $97.6 million that may become available under the revolving credit facility if it grows
the net eligible finance receivables. The revolving credit facility has a commitment fee of 0.40% per annum on the
unused portion of the commitment. Borrowings under the revolving credit facility mature on November 19, 2014.

Substantially all of the Company’s assets are pledged as collateral for borrowings under the revolving credit
agreement.

Junior Subordinated Note Payable

On September 17, 2010, the Company entered into a $75.0 million Junior Subordinated Note Payable with Wells
Fargo Preferred Capital, Inc. (“Wells Fargo”) providing for a non-revolving line of credit maturing on September 17,
2015. Wells Fargo is also a lender under the Revolving Credit Agreement. The Company repaid the junior
subordinated note in May 2012.

Debt Covenants

The debt agreements contain restrictions on the amounts of permitted indebtedness, investments, working capital, and
cash dividends. In addition, the agreements restrict liens on assets and the sale or transfer of subsidiaries.

Debt Maturities

As of March 31, 2013, the aggregate annual maturities of the notes payable for each of the fiscal years subsequent to
March 31, 2013 were as follows:

2014 $—
2015 400,250,000
2016 —

2017 —

2018 —

Total future debt payments $400,250,000

(7)Derivative Financial Instruments

On December 8, 2008, the Company entered into an interest rate swap with a notional amount of $20.0 million to
economically hedge a portion of the cash flows from its floating rate revolving credit facility. Under the terms of the
interest rate swap, the Company paid a fixed rate of 2.4% on the $20.0 million notional amount and received
payments from a counterparty based on the 1 month LIBOR rate for a term that ended December 8, 2011. Interest rate
differentials paid or received under the swap agreement were recognized as adjustments to interest expense. At March
31,2013 and 2012 the Company did not have any interest rate derivative instruments.
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The gains (losses) recognized in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations as a result of the interest rate
swaps and foreign currency exchange option are as follows:

March 31, March 31, March 31,
2013 2012 2011
Realized losses
Interest rate swaps - included as a component of interest expense $— (305,459 ) (1,128,758 )
Unrealized gains
Interest rate swaps - included as a component of other income $— 319,235 1,017,032

The Company does not enter into derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes. The purpose of
these instruments was to reduce the exposure to variability in future cash flows attributable to a portion of its
LIBOR-based borrowings. The Company is currently not accounting for these derivative instruments using the cash
flow hedge accounting provisions of FASB ASC Topic 815-10-15; therefore, the changes in fair value of the swaps
are included in earnings as other income or expenses.

By using derivative instruments, the Company is exposed to credit and market risk. Credit risk, which is the risk that
a counterparty to a derivative instrument will fail to perform, exists to the extent of the fair value gain in a

derivative. Market risk is the adverse effect on the financial instruments from a change in interest rates. The
Company manages the market risk associated with interest rate contracts by establishing and monitoring limits as to
the types and degree of risk that may be undertaken. The market risk associated with derivatives used for interest rate
risk management activities is fully incorporated in the Company’s market risk sensitivity analysis.

(8)Insurance Commissions and Other Income

Insurance commissions and other income for the years ending March 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 consist of:

2013 2012 2011
Insurance commissions $51,345,424 47,223,398 41,691,008
Tax return preparation revenue 8,096,976 7,923,581 7,794,582
Auto club membership revenue 5,493,653 5,624,142 5,011,758
World Class Buying Club revenue 4,761,257 4,991,111 4,416,879
Other 7,925,072 7,918,341 7,936,631
Insurance commissions and other income $78,222.382 73,680,573 66,850,858

(9)Non-filing Insurance

The Company maintains non-filing insurance coverage with an unaffiliated insurance company. The following is a
summary of the non-filing insurance activity for the years ended March 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011:

2013 2012 2011
Insurance premiums written $7,361,547 7,200,590 6,745,271
Recoveries on claims paid $1,005,757 750,804 691,184
Claims paid $7,576,902 7,463,662 6,778,465
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(10)Leases

The Company conducts most of its operations from leased facilities, except for its owned corporate office
building. The Company's leases typically have a lease term of three to five years and contain lessee renewal
options. A majority of the leases provide that the lessee pays property taxes, insurance and common area
maintenance costs. It is expected that in the normal course of business, expiring leases will be renewed at the
Company's option or replaced by other leases or acquisitions of other properties. All of the Company’s leases are

operating leases.

The future minimum lease payments under noncancelable operating leases as of March 31, 2013, are as follows:

2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
Thereafter

Total future minimum lease payments

$19,762,041
13,271,575
6,744,285
1,938,505
588,251

$42,304,657

Rental expense for cancelable and noncancelable operating leases for the years ended March 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011,
was approximately $21.9 million, $20.0 million and $17.8 million, respectively.

(11)Income Taxes

Income tax expense (benefit) consists of:

Year ended March 31, 2013
U.S. Federal

State and local

Foreign

Year ended March 31, 2012
U.S. Federal

State and local

Foreign

Year ended March 31, 2011
U.S. Federal

State and local

Foreign

50

Current

$63,140,638
8,372,748
1,629,695
$73,143,081

$55,179,487
5,745,452
2,247,933
$63,172,872

$47,303,032
4,953,995
2,580,385
$54,837,412

Deferred

(8,792,012
(857,958
(1,292,028
(10,941,998

(2,302,615
112,857

(1,804,216
(3,993,974

(19,448
(538,793
(2,279,239
(2,837,480

~— N N

)

Total

54,348,626
7,514,790
337,667
62,201,083

52,876,872
5,858,309
443,717
59,178,898

47,283,584
4,415,202
301,146
51,999,932
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Income tax expense was $62,201,083, $59,178,898 and $51,999,932, for the years ended March 31, 2013, 2012 and
2011, respectively, and differed from the amounts computed by applying the U.S. federal income tax rate of 35% to

pretax income from continuing operations as a result of the following:

Expected income tax

Increase (reduction) in income taxes resulting from:

State tax, net of federal benefit
Insurance income exclusion
Uncertain tax positions
Foreign income adjustments
Other, net

2013 2012
$58,201,791 55,955,669

4,884,614 3,807,901
(123,289 ) (118,656
283,084 (323,651

(961,771 ) (533,246
(83,346 ) 390,881
$62,201,083 59,178,898

)
)
)

2011
50,137,189

2,869,881
(165,289
(1,326,568
(284,527
769,246
51,999,932

)
)
)

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and deferred tax

liabilities at March 31, 2013 and 2012 are presented below:

2013
Deferred tax assets:
Allowance for doubtful accounts $23,078,422
Unearned insurance commissions 13,190,468
Accounts payable and accrued expenses primarily related to employee benefits 8,021,707
Accrued interest receivable —
Reserve for uncollectible interest 5,473,804
Convertible notes 383,206
Other 728,658
Gross deferred tax assets 50,876,265
Less valuation allowance (1,274
Net deferred tax assets 50,874,991
Deferred tax liabilities:
Fair value adjustment for loans (13,563,946
Property and equipment (4,134,286
Intangible assets (1,531,635
Deferred net loan origination fees (1,728,710
Prepaid expenses (500,418
Unrealized losses —
Gross deferred tax liabilities (21,458,995
Net deferred tax assets $29.415,996

51

)

2012

20,536,315
13,206,765
6,260,263
2,903,523
563,957
598,041

44,068,864
(1,274
44,067,590

(17,243,185
(4,397,194
(1,534,837
(1,763,007
(654,533
(836
(25,593,592

18,473,998

)
)
)
)
)
)
)

95



Edgar Filing: WORLD ACCEPTANCE CORP - Form 10-K/A

Table of Contents

The valuation allowance for deferred tax assets as of March 31, 2013 and 2012 was $1,274. The valuation allowance
against the total deferred tax assets as of March 31, 2013 and 2012 relates to state net operating losses. In assessing
the realizability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely than not that some portion or
all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the
generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those temporary differences become

deductible. Management considers the scheduled reversals of deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable income,
and tax planning strategies in making this assessment. In order to fully realize the deferred tax asset, the Company
will need to generate future taxable income prior to the expiration of the deferred tax assets governed by the tax

code. Based upon the level of historical taxable income and projections for future taxable income over the periods in
which the deferred tax assets are deductible, management believes it is more likely than not the Company will realize
the benefits of these deductible differences, net of the existing valuation allowances at March 31, 2013. The amount
of the deferred tax asset considered realizable, however, could be reduced in the near term if estimates of future
taxable income during the carryforward period are reduced.

The Company is required to assess whether the earnings of the Company's Mexican foreign subsidiary will be
permanently reinvested in the respective foreign jurisdiction or if previously untaxed foreign earnings of the Company
will no longer be permanently reinvested and thus become taxable in the United States. If these earnings were ever
repatriated to the United States, the Company would be required to accrue and pay taxes on the cumulative
undistributed earnings. As of March 31, 2013, the Company has determined that approximately $8.3 million of
cumulative undistributed net earnings, as well as the future net earnings, of the Mexican foreign subsidiaries will be
permanently reinvested.

As of March 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company had $3.2 million and $2.9 million of total gross unrecognized tax
benefits including interest, respectively. Of these totals, approximately $1.6 million and $1.5 million, respectively,
represents the amount of unrecognized tax benefits that are permanent in nature and, if recognized, would affect the
annual effective tax rate.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits is as follows:

Unrecognized tax benefits balance at March 31, 2012 $2,704,386
Gross increases for tax positions of current year 221,879

Gross increases for tax positions of prior years —

Federal and state tax settlements —

Lapse of statute of limitations (141,174 )
Unrecognized tax benefits balance at March 31, 2013 $2,785,091

At March 31, 2013, approximately $2.0 million of gross unrecognized tax benefits are expected to be resolved during
the next 12 months through settlements with taxing authorities or the expiration of the statute of limitations. The
Company’s continuing practice is to recognize interest and penalties related to income tax matters in income tax
expense. As of March 31, 2013, the Company had $417,004 accrued for gross interest, of which $240,609 was a
current period expense.

The Company is subject to U.S. and Mexican income taxes, as well as various other state and local jurisdictions. With
few exceptions, the Company is no longer subject to U.S. federal, state and local, or non-U.S. income tax
examinations by tax authorities for years before 2009, although carryforward attributes that were generated prior to
2009 may still be adjusted upon examination by the taxing authorities if they either have been or will be used in a
future period.

96



52

Edgar Filing: WORLD ACCEPTANCE CORP - Form 10-K/A

97



Edgar Filing: WORLD ACCEPTANCE CORP - Form 10-K/A

Table of Contents

(12)Earnings Per Share

The following is a reconciliation of the numerators and denominators of the basic and diluted EPS calculations:

Basic EPS
Income available to common shareholders

Effect of Dilutive Securities Options and restricted stock
Convertible notes payable

Diluted EPS

Income available to common shareholders plus assumed exercises

of stock options

Basic EPS
Income available to common shareholders

Effect of Dilutive Securities Options and restricted stock
Convertible notes payable

Diluted EPS
Income available to common shareholders plus assumed
exercises of stock options

Basic EPS
Income available to common shareholders

Effect of Dilutive Securities Options and restricted stock
Convertible notes payable

Diluted EPS
Income available to common shareholders plus assumed
exercises of stock options

Options to purchase 403,123, 86,578 and 291,755 shares of common stock at various prices were outstanding during

For the year ended March 31, 2013
Income Shares Per Share
(Numerator) (Denominator) Amount

$104,089,748 12,940,007 $8.04

— 274,264

$104,089,748 13,214,271 $7.88

For the year ended March 31, 2012
Per Share

Income(NumeratShares(Denominator) Amount

$100,694,443 14,906,662 $6.75
— 373,489

— 8,960

$100,694,443 15,289,111 $6.59

For the year ended March 31, 2011

. Per Share
Income(Numerat®ipres(Denominator) Amount
$91,249,180 15,833,983 $5.76
— 376,250
$91,249,180 16,210,233 $5.63

the years ended March 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively, but were not included in the computation of diluted

EPS because the option exercise price was antidilutive.
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During the year ended March 31, 2011 the warrants related to the convertible notes payable were not included in the
computation of dilutive earnings per share because the effect of such instruments was anti-dilutive. The warrants,
which expired on February 9, 2012, had a strike price of $73.97 and were generally exercisable at any time through
February 9, 2012. The Company issued and sold the warrants in a transaction exempt from the registration
requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, by virtue of section 4(2) thereof. There were no underwriting
commissions or discounts in connection with the sale of the warrants.

(13)Benefit Plans
Retirement Plan

The Company provides a defined contribution employee benefit plan (401(k) plan) covering full-time employees,
whereby employees can invest up to the maximum designated for that year. The Company makes a matching
contribution equal to 50% of the employees' contributions for the first 6% of gross pay. The Company's expense
under this plan was $1,432,170, $1,290,659 and $1,175,574, for the years ended March 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011,
respectively.

Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan

The Company has instituted a Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (“SERP”), which is a non-qualified executive
benefit plan in which the Company agrees to pay the executive additional benefits in the future, usually at retirement,
in return for continued employment by the executive. The Company selects the key executives who participate in the
SERP. The SERP is an unfunded plan, which means there are no specific assets set aside by the Company in
connection with the establishment of the plan. The executive has no rights under the agreement beyond those of a
general creditor of the Company. In May 2009, the Company instituted a second Supplemental Executive Retirement
Plan (“SERP”) to provide to one executive the same type of benefits as are in the original SERP but for which he would
not have qualified due to age. This second SERP is also an unfunded plan with no specific assets set aside by the
Company in connection with the plan. For the years ended March 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, contributions of
$1,022,979, $971,779 and $924,177, respectively, were charged to operations related to the SERP. The unfunded
liability was $7,470,918, $6,732,123 and $6,044,528, as of March 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

For the three years presented, the unfunded liability was estimated using the following assumptions: an annual salary
increase of 3.5% for all 3 years; a discount rate of 6% for all 3 years; and a retirement age of 65.

Executive Deferred Compensation Plan

The Company has an Executive Deferral Plan. Eligible executives and directors may elect to defer all or a portion of
their incentive compensation to be paid under the Executive Deferral Plan. As of March 31, 2013 and 2012, no
executive had deferred compensation under this plan.

Stock Option Plans

The Company has a 2002 Stock Option Plan, a 2005 Stock Option Plan, a 2008 Stock Option Plan, and a 2011 Stock
Option Plan for the benefit of certain directors, officers, and key employees. Under these plans, 4,100,000 shares of
authorized common stock have been reserved for issuance pursuant to grants approved by the Compensation and
Stock Option Committee of the Board of Directors. Stock options granted under these plans have a maximum
duration of 10 years, may be subject to certain vesting requirements, which are generally five years for officers,
directors, and key employees, and are priced at the market value of the Company's common stock on the date of grant
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of the option. At March 31, 2013, there were 397,188 shares available for grant under the plans.

Stock-based compensation is recognized as provided under FASB ASC Topic 718-10 and FASB ASC Topic

505-50. FASB ASC Topic 718-10 requires all share-based payments to employees, including grants of employee
stock options, to be recognized as compensation expense over the requisite service period (generally the vesting
period) in the financial statements based on their fair values. The impact of forfeitures that may occur prior to vesting
is also estimated and considered in the amount recognized. Stock option compensation is recognized as an expense
over the unvested portion of all stock option awards granted based on the fair values estimated at grant date in
accordance with the provisions of FASB ASC Topic 718-10. The Company has applied the Black-Scholes valuation
model in determining the fair value of the stock option awards. Compensation expense is recognized only for those
options expected to vest, with forfeitures estimated based on historical experience and future expectations.
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The weighted-average fair value at the grant date for options issued during the years ended March 31, 2013, 2012 and
2011 was $36.06, $35.94 and $23.96 per share, respectively. The following is a summary of the Company’s
weighted-average assumptions used to estimate the weighted-average per share fair value of options granted on the
date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model:

2013 2012 2011
Dividend yield 0 % 0 % 0 %
Expected volatility 56.15 % 56.85 % 57.41 %
Average risk-free interest rate 0.80 % 1.12 % 1.55 %
Expected life 5.6 years 6.0 years 6.4 years
Vesting period 5.0 years 5.0 years 5.0 years

The expected stock price volatility is based on the historical volatility of the Company’s stock for a period
approximating the expected life. The expected life represents the period of time that options are expected to be
outstanding after their grant date. The risk-free interest rate reflects the interest rate at grant date on zero-coupon U.S.
governmental bonds that have a remaining life similar to the expected option term.

Option activity for the year ended March 31, 2013 was as follows:

Weighted Weighted
Average Aggregate
Average e .
Shares ; Remaining Intrinsic
Exercise
. Contractual Value
Price
Term
Options outstanding, beginning of year 1,041,500 $37.95
Granted 559,000 71.43
Exercised (332,665 ) 29.89
Forfeited (17,950 ) 49.64
Expired (300 ) 43.04
Options outstanding, end of period 1,249,585 $54.90 7.98 $38,696,623
Options exercisable, end of period 205,305 $33.00 4.50 $10,855,260

The aggregate intrinsic value reflected in the table above represents the total pre-tax intrinsic value (the difference
between the closing stock price on March 31, 2013 and the exercise price, multiplied by the number of in-the-money
options) that would have been received by option holders had all option holders exercised their options as

of March 31, 2013. This amount will change as the market price per share changes. The total intrinsic value of
options exercised during the periods ended March 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 were as follows:

2013 2012 2011

$14,049,751 $12,049,546 $11,151,259

As of March 31, 2013, total unrecognized stock-based compensation expense related to non-vested stock options
amounted to approximately $24.3 million, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of
approximately 4.2 years.
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The following table summarizes information regarding stock options outstanding at March 31, 2013:

Weighted Weighted Weighted
. Average .
Range of Options o Average Options Average
. . . Remaining ; . ;
Exercise Price Outstanding Exercise Exercisable Exercise
Contractual . .
. Price Price
Life
15.00 - $16.99 92,550 4.64 $16.57 39,350 $16.18
23.00 - $23.99 5,500 1.58 23.53 5,500 23.53
25.00 - $25.99 45,400 2.63 25.11 45,400 25.11
26.00 - $27.99 125,550 6.61 26.73 18,550 26.73
28.00 - $28.99 38,250 3.30 28.25 38,250 28.25
43.00 - $43.99 173,015 7.61 43.04 16,295 43.04
48.00 - $49.99 13,400 3.58 49.00 13,400 49.00
66.00 - $67.99 409,920 9.13 67.40 28,560 67.70
72.00 - $73.99 10,000 9.70 73.41 — —
74.00 - $75.99 333,000 9.69 74.08 — —
76.00 - $77.99 3,000 9.86 77.31 — —
15.00 - $77.99 1,249,585 7.98 $54.90 205,305 $33.00

Restricted Stock

On February 5, 2013, the Company granted 85,000 shares of restricted stock (which are equity classified), with a grant
date fair value of $77.31 per share, respectively, to certain officers. The 85,000 shares will vest as follows, if the
Company achieves the following performance goals during any successive trailing four quarters during the
measurement period beginning on October 1, 2012 and ending March 31, 2017:

Trailing 4 quarter EPS Target Restricted Shares Eligible for Vesting (Percentage of

Award)
$13.00 25%
$14.50 25%
$16.00 25%
$18.00 25%

On December 7, 2012, the Company granted 69,600 shares of restricted stock (which are equity classified), with a
grant date fair value of $74.08 per share, respectively, to certain officers and certain independent directors. On
December 11, 2012 the Company granted 1,200 shares of restricted stock (which are equity classified), with a grant
date fair value of $73.41 per share, respectively, to a certain officer. The 70,800 shares will vest on April 30, 2015
based on the Company’s achievement of the following performance goals as of March 31, 2015:

Restricted Shares Eligible for Vesting (Percentage of

EPS Target Award)
$10.29 100%
$9.76 67%
$9.26 33%
Below $9.26 0%
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On December 7, 2012, the Company granted 350,900 shares of restricted stock (which are equity classified), with a
grant date fair value of $74.08 per share, respectively, to certain officers and certain independent directors. On
December 11, 2012, the Company granted 7,800 shares of restricted stock (which are equity classified), with a grant
date fair value of $73.41 per share, respectively, to a certain officer. The 358,700 shares will vest as follows, if the
Company achieves the following performance goals during any successive trailing four quarters during the
measurement period beginning on October 1, 2012 and ending March 31, 2017:

Trailing 4 quarter EPS Target Restricted Shares Eligible for Vesting (Percentage of

Award)
$13.00 25%
$14.50 25%
$16.00 25%
$18.00 25%

On April 30, 2012, the Company granted 10,000 shares of restricted stock (which are equity classified) with a grant
date fair value of $66.51 per share to certain independent directors. All of the shares granted vested immediately.

On November 7, 2011, the Company granted 15,077 shares of restricted stock (which are equity classified), with a
grant date fair value of $67.70 per share, to certain executive officers. One-third of the restricted stock vested
immediately, one-third vested on November 7, 2012, and one-third will vest on November 7, 2013, respectively. On
that same date, the Company granted an additional 24,200 shares of restricted stock (which are equity classified), with
a grant date fair value of $67.70 per share, to certain officers. One-third of the restricted stock vested on November 7,
2012, and one-third of the restricted stock will vest on November 7, 2013 and 2014, respectively. On that same date,
the Company granted an additional 11,139 shares of restricted stock (which are equity classified), with a grant date
fair value of $67.70 per share, to certain executive officers. The 11,139 shares will vest on April 30, 2014 based on
the Company’s compounded annual EPS growth according to the following schedule:

Vesting Percentage Compounded Annual EPS Growth
100% 15% or higher

67% 12% - 14.99%

33% 10% - 11.99%

0% Below 10%

On April 29, 2011, the Company granted 10,000 shares of restricted stock (which are equity classified) with a grant
date fair value of $67.95 per share to certain independent directors. All of the shares granted vested immediately.

On November 8, 2010, the Company granted 29,080 shares of restricted stock (which are equity classified), with a
grant date fair value of $43.04 per share, to certain officers. One-third of the restricted stock vested immediately,
one-third vested on November 8, 2011 and the final third vested on November 8, 2012, respectively. On that same
date, the Company granted an additional 15,871 shares of restricted stock (which are equity classified), with a grant
date fair value of $43.04 per share, to certain executive officers. The 15,871 shares vested on April 30, 2013 based on
the Company’s compounded annual EPS growth according to the following schedule:

Vesting Percentage Compounded Annual EPS Growth
100% 15% or higher

67% 12% - 14.99%

33% 10% - 11.99%

0% Below 10%
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Compensation expense related to restricted stock is based on the number of shares expected to vest and the fair market
value of the common stock on the grant date. The Company recognized $4.8 million, $2.9 million and $2.1 million of
compensation expense for the years ended March 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively, related to restricted stock,
which is included as a component of general and administrative expenses in the Consolidated Statements of
Operations. For purposes of accruing the expense, all shares are expected to vest.

As of March 31, 2013, there was approximately $36.3 million of unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested
restricted stock awards granted, which is expected to be recognized over the next 3.5 years.

A summary of the status of the Company’s restricted stock as of March 31, 2013, and changes during the year ended
March 31, 2013, are presented below:

Weighted
Shares Average Fair
Value at
Grant Date
Outstanding at March 31, 2012 93,999 $50.90
Granted during the period 524,500 74.45
Vested during the period (41,285 ) 46.30
Canceled during the period (14,758 ) 41.51
Outstanding at March 31, 2013 562,456 $73.32

Total share-based compensation included as a component of net income during the years ended March 31, 2013, 2012
and 2011 was as follows:

2013 2012 2011
Share-based compensation related to equity classified units:
Share-based compensation related to stock options $7,322,653 4,867,231 3,855,348
Share-based compensation related to restricted stock 4,818,956 2,865,857 2,112,721
Total share-based compensation related to equity classified awards $12,141,609 7,733,088 5,968,069
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(14) Acquisitions

The following table sets forth the acquisition activity of the Company for the last three fiscal years ($ in thousands):

2013 2012 2011
Number of business combinations 3 2 6
Number of asset purchases 9 23 14
Total acquisitions 12 25 20
Purchase Price $2,649 4,253 3,725
Tangible assets:
Net loans 1,925 3,368 2,974
Furniture, fixtures & equipment 8 16 4

1,933 3,384 2,978
Excess of purchase prices over carrying value of net tangible assets $716 869 747
Customer lists $451 717 607
Non-compete agreements 60 96 96
Goodwill 205 56 44
Total intangible assets $716 869 747

The Company evaluates each acquisition to determine if the transaction meets the definition of a business
combination. Those transactions that meet the definition of a business combination are accounted for as such under
FASB ASC Topic 805-10 and all other acquisitions are accounted for as asset purchases. All acquisitions have been
with independent third parties.

When the acquisition results in a new office, the Company records the transaction as a business combination, since the
office acquired will continue to generate loans. The Company typically retains the existing employees and the office
location. The purchase price is allocated to the estimated fair value of the tangible assets acquired and to the
estimated fair value of the identified intangible assets acquired (generally non-compete agreements and customer
lists). The remainder is allocated to goodwill. During the year ended March 31, 2013, three acquisitions were
recorded as business combinations.

When the acquisition is of a portfolio of loans only, the Company records the transaction as an asset purchase. In an
asset purchase, no goodwill is recorded. The purchase price is allocated to the estimated fair value of the tangible and
intangible assets acquired. During the year ended March 31, 2013, nine acquisitions were recorded as asset
acquisitions.

The Company’s acquisitions include tangible assets (generally loans and furniture and equipment) and intangible assets
(generally non-compete agreements, customer lists, and goodwill), both of which are recorded at their fair values,
which are estimated pursuant to the processes described below.

Acquired loans are valued at the net loan balance. Given the short-term nature of these loans, generally four months,

and that these loans are subject to continual repricing at current rates, management believes the net loan balances
approximate their fair value.
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Furniture and equipment are valued at the specific purchase price as agreed to by both parties at the time of
acquisition, which management believes approximates their fair values.
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Non-compete agreements are valued at the stated amount paid to the other party for these agreements, which the
Company believes approximates the fair value. The fair value of the customer lists is based on a valuation model that
utilizes the Company’s historical data to estimate the value of any acquired customer lists. In a business combination,
the remaining excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the tangible assets, customer list, and non-compete
agreements is allocated to goodwill. The offices the Company acquires are small, privately-owned offices, which do
not have sufficient historical data to determine attrition. The Company believes that the customers acquired have the
same characteristics and perform similarly to its customers. Therefore, the Company utilized the attrition patterns of
its customers when developing the method. This method is re-evaluated periodically.

Customer lists are allocated at an office level and are evaluated for impairment at an office level when a triggering
event occurs, in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 360-10-05. If a triggering event occurs, the impairment loss to the
customer list is generally the remaining unamortized customer list balance. In most acquisitions, the original fair
value of the customer list allocated to an office is generally less than $100,000, and management believes that in the
event a triggering event were to occur, the impairment loss to an unamortized customer list would be immaterial.

The results of all acquisitions have been included in the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements since the
respective acquisition dates. The pro forma impact of these purchases as though they had been acquired at the
beginning of the periods presented would not have a material effect on the results of operations as reported.

(15)Fair Value

The Company carries certain financial instruments (derivative assets and liabilities) at fair value on a recurring basis.
Fair value is defined as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit
price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants on the measurement date. The Company determines the fair values of its financial instruments based on
the fair value hierarchy which, requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of
unobservable inputs when measuring fair value.

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value are grouped in three levels. The levels prioritize the inputs used
to measure the fair value of the assets or liabilities. These levels are:

Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for assets and liabilities, either directly or indirectly.
These inputs include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets and quoted prices for identical or
similar assets or liabilities in market that are less active.

Level 3 — Unobservable inputs for assets or liabilities reflecting the reporting entity’s own assumptions.

As of March 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company had no financial assets or liabilities that were measured at fair market
value.
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Fair Value of Debt

The book value and estimated fair value of our debt was as follows (in thousands):

March 31, March 31,
2013 2012
Book value:
Senior notes payable $400,250 229.250
Junior subordinated note payable — 50,000
$400,250 279,250
Estimated fair value:
Senior notes payable $400,250 229,250
Junior subordinated note payable — 50,000
$400,250 279,250

The carrying value of the senior notes payable and the junior subordinated note payable approximated the fair value as
the notes payable are at a variable interest rate.

Other
There were no assets or liabilities measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis during fiscal 2013 or fiscal 2012.
(16) Quarterly Information (Unaudited)

The following sets forth selected quarterly operating data:

2013 2012
First Second  Third Fourth First Second  Third Fourth
(Dollars in thousands, except for earnings per share data)

Total revenues $132,836 139,398 149,640 161,844 123,156 132,139 135946 148,921

Provision for loan losses 23,615 32,402 37,395 20911 22,839 30,057 36,109 16,700

General and 69.159 66,158 74798 75595 64513 61464 66234 68474
admlmstratlve expenses

Interest expense 3,926 4,066 4,404 4,998 3,384 3,947 3,338 3,230
Income tax expense 13,521 13,871 12,369 22,440 12,238 13,367 10,683 22,891
Net income $22,615 22,901 20,674 37,900 20,182 23,304 19,582 37,626
Earnings per share:

Basic $1.66 1.76 1.61 3.08 1.30 1.56 1.33 2.60
Diluted $1.63 1.72 1.58 3.01 1.27 1.52 1.30 2.54
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(17)Litigation

At March 31, 2013, the Company and certain of its subsidiaries have been named as defendants or are otherwise
involved in various legal actions and proceedings arising from their normal business activities, including matters in
which damages in various amounts are claimed. In view of the inherent difficulty in predicting the outcome of legal
matters, theories, potentially involve a large number of parties or are in the early stages, the Company generally
cannot predict the eventual outcome of these pending matters, nor the timing of the ultimate resolution of such matters
or the eventual loss, fines, penalties, settlement or other impact, if any, related to such matters. The Company does
not believe, however, that any reasonably possible losses arising from any currently pending legal matters will be
material to the Company’s financial statements.

(18) Subsequent Events

On May 21, 2013, the Board of Directors authorized the Company to repurchase up to $50.0 million of the Company’s
common stock. This repurchase authorization follows, and is in addition to, a similar repurchase authorization of
$25.0 million announced on February 27, 2013. After taking into account all shares repurchased through June 14,
2013, the Company has approximately $29.6 million (including pending repurchase orders subject to settlement), in
aggregate remaining repurchase capacity under all of the Company’s outstanding repurchase authorizations. The
timing and actual number of shares repurchased will depend on a variety of factors, including the stock price,
corporate and regulatory requirements and other market and economic conditions. Although the repurchase
authorizations above have no stated expiration date, the Company’s stock repurchase program may be suspended or
discontinued at any time.
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MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

We are responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as defined in

Rules 13a - 15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. We have assessed the effectiveness of internal control

over financial reporting as of March 31, 2013. Our assessment was based on criteria set forth by the Committee of

Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission, or COSO, Internal Control-Integrated Framework.

Our internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with

generally accepted accounting principles. Our internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and

procedures that:

(l)pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect our transactions and
dispositions of the assets;

provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial

(2) statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that our receipts and expenditures are

being made only in accordance with authorizations of our management and board of directors; and

(3)provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of our assets that could have a material effect on our financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect

misstatements. Also, any assumptions regarding internal control over financial reporting in future periods based on an

evaluation of effectiveness in a prior period are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of

changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of March 31,

2013. In making this assessment, management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Control-Integrated Framework.

As a result of management's evaluation of the Company's internal control over financial reporting, management
concluded that a material weakness in the Company's internal control over financial reporting relating to the
determination of the allowance for loan losses. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control over financial reporting such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of
the Company's annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. The material
weakness resulted from the aggregation of the following deficiencies:

The Company did not have a documented policy that addressed the establishment of the allowance for loan losses,
tncluding the assumptions underlying the allowance for loan losses and how management would review and conclude
on the appropriateness of the allowance for loan losses; and

The Company did not have a control to assess whether the accounting treatment of renewals was in accordance with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and what impact, if any, renewals would have on the estimate of the
allowance for loan losses

Subsequent to March 31, 2013, and immediately following the identification of the above-referenced material
weakness, management began taking steps to remediate the material weakness. Management anticipates that these
remedial actions will strengthen the Company's internal control over financial reporting and will, over time, address
the material weakness that was identified as of March 31, 2013. Because some of these remedial actions will take
place on a quarterly basis, their successful implementation may need to be evaluated over several quarters before
management is able to conclude that the material weakness has been remediated and management concludes that these
controls are operating effectively.
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Our independent registered public accounting firm has audited the Consolidated Financial Statements included in this
Annual Report and has issued an attestation report on the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting,
as stated in their report.

/s/ A. A. McLean III /s/ Kelly M. Malson

A. A. McLean III Kelly M. Malson

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors
World Acceptance Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of World Acceptance Corporation and subsidiaries as
of March 31, 2013 and 2012, and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income,
shareholders' equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three year period ended March 31, 2013. These
consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of World Acceptance Corporation and subsidiaries as of March 31, 2013 and 2012, and the results
of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three year period ended March 31, 2013, in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), World Acceptance Corporation's internal control over financial reporting as of March 31, 2013, based on
criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission (COSO), and our report dated July 19, 2013 expressed an adverse opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ KPMG

Greenville, South Carolina
July 19, 2013
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors

World Acceptance Corporation:

We have audited World Acceptance Corporation and subsidiaries' (“the Company's”) internal control over financial
reporting as of March 31, 2013, based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company's management is
responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management Report on
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting Item 9A (1). Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's
internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining
an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audit
also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance
with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have
a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Company's annual or interim financial
statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. A material weakness has been identified and included
in management's assessment whereby the Company (i) did not have a documented policy that addressed the
establishment of the allowance for loan losses, including the assumptions underlying the allowance for loan losses and
how management would review and conclude on the appropriateness of the allowance for loan losses; and (ii) did not
have a control to assess whether the accounting treatment of renewals was in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles and what impact, if any, renewals would have on the estimate of the allowance for loan losses.
We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the consolidated balance sheets of the Company as of March 31, 2013 and 2012, and the related consolidated
statements of operations, comprehensive income, shareholders' equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the
three year period ended March 31, 2013. This material weakness was considered in determining the nature, timing, and
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extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the 2013 consolidated financial statements, and this report does not affect
our report dated July 19, 2013, which expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, because of the effect of the aforementioned material weakness on the achievement of the objectives of
the control criteria, the Company has not maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of March 31,
2013, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance on management's statements referring to corrective
actions taken after March 31, 2013, relative to the aforementioned material weakness in internal control over financial
reporting.

/s/ KPMG

Greenville, South Carolina
July 19, 2013
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

The Company had no disagreements on accounting or financial disclosure matters with its independent registered
public accountants to report under this Item 9.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company, with the participation of its management, including the Company's Chief Executive Officer (“CEQO”) and
Chief Financial Officer(“CFO”), carried out an evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of its
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”)), as of the end of the period covered by this report.

Based upon that evaluation, , the Company's CEO and CFO concluded that, as a result of the material weakness
described under the caption entitled “Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting” in Item 8 of
this report, the Company's disclosure controls and procedures were not effective as of the end of the period covered by
this report. In light of this material weakness, in preparing the Company's Consolidated Financial Statements included
in this Report, the Company performed a thorough review of credit quality, focusing especially on loan modifications.
Additional remediation efforts the Company is undertaking in response to this material weakness are discussed below
under “ Remediation Plan for Material Weakness in Internal Control over Financial Reporting.”

Based on this review, and notwithstanding the material weakness described above, the Company's CEO and CFO have
certified that, based on their knowledge, the Company's Consolidated Financial Statements included in this Report
fairly present in all material respects the Company's financial condition, results of operations, and cash flows for the
periods presented in this Report.

Pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, the Company has included a report of management's
assessment of the design and operating effectiveness of its internal control over financial reporting as part of this
report.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management's assessment of the Company's internal control over financial reporting identified a material weakness
related to the documentation of the establishment and assumptions underlying the adequacy of the allowance for loan
losses and the documentation of management's assessment of renewals that may be considered loan modifications as
of March 31, 2013. Other than the identification of the material weakness mentioned above, there were no changes in
the Company's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the fourth quarter that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company's internal control over financial reporting.

Remediation Plan for Material Weakness in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Subsequent to March 31, 2013, and immediately following the identification of the above-referenced material
weakness, management began taking steps to remediate the material weakness. The ongoing efforts include the
following:

Enhance the documentation of management's process to establish the allowance for loan losses and underlying
assumptions, to include documentation regarding:

Management's assessment of the impact renewals may have in determining the allowance for loan losses in
accordance with U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles;
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the precision levels management uses in determining the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses;

summary of the analysis of the movement model;

management's review of account aging (both contractual and recency);

management's review of delinquent renewals as a percent of volume; and

other economic factors that may apply during the related period.

Changes will be made to the system that will either 1) not allow a loan renewal if the proceeds to customers are less
than 10% of the prior loan's outstanding principal or 2) an exception report for all loan renewals with proceeds to the
customer of less than 10% of the prior loan's outstanding principal . If the exception report is used, management will
add additional controls for proper review and approval of the exception report.

Management anticipates that these remedial actions will strengthen the Company's internal control over financial
reporting and will, over time, address the material weakness that was identified as of March 31, 2013. Because some
of these remedial actions will take place on a quarterly basis, their implementation may need to be evaluated over
several quarters before management is able to conclude that the material weakness has been remediated.

Item 9A (1).
Management Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of our financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Management assessed our internal control over financial reporting as of March 31, 2013, the end of our fiscal year.
Management based its assessment on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Management’s assessment included evaluation
of elements such as the design and operating effectiveness of key financial reporting controls, process documentation,
accounting policies, and our overall control environment.

As a result of management's evaluation of the Company's internal control over financial reporting, management
concluded that a material weakness in the Company's internal control over financial reporting relating to the
determination of the allowance for loan losses. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control over financial reporting such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of
the Company's annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. The material
weakness resulted from the aggregation of the following deficiencies:

The Company did not have a documented policy that addressed the establishment of the allowance for loan losses,
tncluding the assumptions underlying the allowance for loan losses and how management would review and conclude
on the appropriateness of the allowance for loan losses; and

The Company did not have a control to assess whether the accounting treatment of renewals was in accordance with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and what impact, if any, renewals would have on the estimate of the
allowance for loan losses

Subsequent to March 31, 2013, and immediately following the identification of the above-referenced material
weakness, management began taking steps to remediate the material weakness. Management anticipates that these
remedial actions will strengthen the Company's internal control over financial reporting and will, over time, address
the material weakness that was identified as of March 31, 2013. Because some of these remedial actions will take
place on a quarterly basis, their implementation may need to be evaluated over several quarters before management is
able to conclude that the material weakness has been remediated and management concludes that these controls are

119



Edgar Filing: WORLD ACCEPTANCE CORP - Form 10-K/A

operating effectively.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting is included in Part II, Item 8 of this Form
10-K. We reviewed the results of management’s assessment with the Audit and Compliance Committee of our Board
of Directors.

Our independent registered public accounting firm, KPMG LLP, independently assessed the effectiveness of the

Company’s internal control over financial reporting. KPMG has issued an attestation report concurring with
management’s assessment, which is included at the end of Part II, Item 8 of this Form 10-K.
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Inherent Limitations on Effectiveness of Controls

Our management, including the CEO and CFO, does not expect that our disclosure controls and procedures or our
internal control over financial reporting will prevent or detect all error and all fraud. A control system, no matter how
well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the control system’s objectives
will be met. The design of a control system must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints, and the benefits of
controls must be considered relative to their costs. Further, because of the inherent limitations in all control systems,
no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that misstatements due to error or fraud will not occur or that
all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, have been detected. These inherent limitations include the realities that
judgments in decision-making can be faulty and that breakdowns can occur because of simple error or mistake.
Controls can also be circumvented by the individual acts of some persons, by collusion of two or more people, or by
management override of the controls. The design of any system of controls is based in part on certain assumptions
about the likelihood of future events, and there can be no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its stated
goals under all potential future conditions. Projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of controls to future
periods are subject to risks. Over time, controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or
deterioration in the degree of compliance with policies or procedures.

Item 9B. Other Information

None.
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PART III.
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

Information contained under the caption “Election of Directors—Director Qualifications and Experience,” “—~Audit and
Compliance Committee,” “—Audit and Compliance Committee Financial Experts,” “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership
Reporting Compliance” and “Corporate Governance Matters—Code of Business Conduct and Ethics” and “—Director
Nominations” in the Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference in response to this Item 10. The information
in response to this Item 10 regarding the executive officers of the Company is contained in Item 1, Part I hereof under
the caption "Executive Officers of the Company."

Item 11. Executive Compensation

Information contained under the caption "Executive Compensation" in the Proxy Statement, except for the
information therein under the subcaption "Report of The Compensation and Stock Option Committee," which shall be
deemed furnished, but not filed herewith, is incorporated herein by reference in response to this Item 11.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners, Management and Related Stockholder Matters

Information contained under the captions “Executive Compensation — “Equity Plan Compensation Information,”
"Ownership of Shares by Certain Beneficial Owners" and "Ownership of Common Stock of Management" in the
Proxy Statement is incorporated by reference herein in response to this Item 12.

Item 13.  Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

Information contained under the Caption "Certain Relationships and Related Transactions" in the Proxy Statement is
incorporated by reference in response to this Item 13. Information contained under the captions “Election of
Directors—Director Independence,” “—Compensation and Stock Option Committee,” “~Nominating and Corporate Governance
Committee” and “—Audit and Compliance Committee” in the Proxy Statement is incorporated by reference in response to

this Item 13.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services
Information contained under the caption “Ratification of Appointment of Independent Registered Public Accountants,”

in the Proxy Statement except for the information therein under the subcaption “Report of the Audit and Compliance
Committee of the Board of Directors,” is incorporated by reference herein in response to this Item 14.
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PART IV.
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

The following Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company and Report of Independent Registered Public
Accounting Firm are filed herewith.

€]
Consolidated Financial Statements:

Consolidated Balance Sheets at March 31, 2013 and 2012

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

(2)Financial Statement Schedules

All schedules for which provision is made in the applicable accounting regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commission are not required under the related instructions, are inapplicable, or the required information is included
elsewhere in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

(3)Exhibits

The following exhibits are filed as part of this report or, where so indicated, have been previously filed and are
incorporated herein by reference.

Filed Herewith (*),
Exhibit o Previously filed (+), Con.lpan)f
Number Description or Incorporated by Registration
Reference Previous ~ No. or Report
Exhibit Number
31 Second Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of the 31 333-107426
Company, as amended
3.2 Fourth Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Company 99.1 8-03-07 8-K
4.1 Specimen Share Certificate 4.1 33-42879
Articles 3, 4 and 5 of the Form of Company's Second Amended
4.2 and Restated Articles of Incorporation (as amended) 3.1 333-107426
43 Article II, Section 9 of the Company’s Fourth Amended And 99.1 8-03-07 8-K
Restated Bylaws
44 Amended and Restated Revolving Credit Agreement, dated 101 9-21-10 8-K

September 17, 2010
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First Amendment to the Amended and Restated Revolving Credit
Agreement dated September 17, 2010

Second Amendment to the Amended and Restated Revolving
Credit Agreement dated September 17, 2010

Third Amendment to the Amended and Restated Revolving Credit |
Agreement dated November 19, 2012

10.1

10.1

0.1

9-1-11 8-K

5-1-12 8-K

11-20-12 8-K
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Amended and Restated Company Security Agreement, Pledge and |
Indenture of Trust, dated as of September 17, 2010

Amended and Restated Subsidiary Security Agreement, Pledge and
4.9 Indenture of Trust, dated as of September 17, 2010 (i.e. Subsidiary 10.3 9-21-10 8-K
Security Agreement)

Amended and Restated Guaranty Agreement, dated as of

4.8 0.2 9-21-10 8-K

4.10 September 17, 2010 (i.e., Subsidiary Guaranty Agreement) 10.4 9-21-108-K
10.14 Employment Agreement of A. Alexander McLean, III, effective 103 2007 10-K
May 21, 2007
1024 Employment Agreement of Mark C. Roland, effective as of May 10.4 2007 10-K
21,2007
Employment Agreement of Kelly M. Malson, effective as of
10.3+ August 27, 2007 99.1 8-29-07 8-K
10.4+ ]zi(r)r(l)[;loyment Agreement of Javier Sauza, effective as of June 1, 10.4 2009 10-K
10,5+ Securityholders' Agreement, dat.ed as .of Septejmber 19, 1991, 105 33-42879
between the Company and certain of its securityholders
10.6+  Supplemental Income Plan 10.7 2000 10-K
10.7+  Second Amendment to the Company’s Supplemental Income Plan 10.2 12-31-07 10-Q
10.8+  Board of Directors Deferred Compensation Plan 10.6 2000 10-K
Second Amendment to the Company’s Board of Directors Deferred
10.9 Compensation Plan (2000) 101 12-31-0710-Q
10.12+ 2002 Stock Option Plan of the Company Appendix A Definitive Proxy

Statement on
Schedule 14A

for the 2002
Annual Meeting
10.13+ First Amendment to the Company’s 2002 Stock
Option Plan 10.1 12-31-07 10-Q
10.14+ 2005 Stock Option Plan of the Company Appendix B Definitive Proxy

Statement on
Schedule 14A

for the 2005
Annual Meeting
10.15+ First Amendment to the Company’s 2005 Stock Option Plan 10.1 12-31-07 10-Q
10.16+ The Company’s Executive Incentive Plan 10.6 1994 10-K
10.17+ The Company’s Retirement Savings Plan 4.1 333-14399
10.184+ The Company Retirement Savings Plan Fifth Amendment 10.1 12-31-08 10-Q
10.19+ Executive Deferral Plan 10.1 2001 10-K
10.20+ Second Amendment to the Company’s Executive Deferral Plan 10.1 12-31-07 10-Q
10214 First Amen‘ded and Restated Board of Directors 2005 Deferred 102 123107 10-Q
Compensation Plan
10.22+ First Amended and Restated 2005 Executive Deferral Plan 10.2 12-31-07 10-Q
10234 Second Amended and Restated Company 2005 Supplemental 102 123107 10-Q
Income Plan
10.24+ 2008 Stock Option Plan of the Company Appendix A Definitive Proxy

Statement on
Schedule 14A
for the 2008
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Annual Meeting
10.25+ 2009 Supplemental Income Plan 10.1 6-30-09 10-Q
10.26+ 2011 Stock Option Plan of the Company Appendix A Definitive Proxy
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10.27+ Form of Stock Option Agreement 99.1
10.284+ Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement (Group A) 99.2
10.294+ Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement (Group B) 99.3
14.0 Code of Ethics 14.0
21.0 Schedule of the Company’s Subsidiaries *
23.0 Consent of KPMG LLP *
31.1 Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer *
31.2 Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Chief Financial Officer *
32.1 Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Officer *
32.2 Section 1350 Certification of Chief Financial Officer *
The following materials from the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013, formatted in
XBRL: (i) Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2013 and
March 31, 2012; (ii) Consolidated Statements of Operations for the
fiscal years ended March 31, 2013, March 31, 2012 and March 31,
101.1 2011; (iii) Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for

the fiscal years ended March 31, 2013, March 31, 2012 and March
31, 2011; (iv) Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity for
the fiscal years ended March 31, 2013, March 31, 2012 and March
31, 2011; (v) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the fiscal
years ended March 31, 2013, March 31, 2012 and March 31, 2011;
and (vi) Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

* Submitted electronically herewith.
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Statement on
Schedule 14A
for the 2011
Annual Meeting
12-10-12 8-K
12-10-12 8-K
12-10-12 8-K
2004 10-K

Management Contract or other compensatory plan required to be filed under Item 15 of this report and Item 601
of Regulation S-K of the Securities and Exchange Commission.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

/s/ A. Alexander McLean III
A. Alexander McLean, 111

WORLD ACCEPTANCE CORPORATION

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Date: July 19, 2013

/s/ Kelly M. Malson
Kelly M. Malson

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Date: July 19, 2013

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed by the following
persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature

/s/ A. Alexander McLean III

A. Alexander McLean, III, Chairman of
the Board and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date:

/s/ Kelly M. Malson

Kelly M. Malson, Senior Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer (Principal
Financial and Accounting Officer)

Date:

/s/ William S. Hummers
William S. Hummers, 111, Director

Date:

/s/ Scott J. Vassalluzzo
Scott J. Vassalluzzo, Director

Date:
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July 19, 2013

July 19, 2013

July 19, 2013

July 19, 2013

/s/ Ken R. Bramlett Jr.

Ken R. Bramlett Jr., Director

Date:
/s/ James R. Gilreath

James R. Gilreath, Director

Date:

/s/ Charles D. Way
Charles D. Way, Director

Date:

/s/ Darrell Whitaker
Darrell Whitaker, Director

Date:

July 19, 2013

July 19, 2013

July 19, 2013

July 19, 2013
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